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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of TP Western Odisha Distribution Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinicn

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TP Western Odisha Distribution
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

in our opinion and fo the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013,
as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Cempany
as at March 31, 2024, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statemenis’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.
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whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is

provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the res
Responsibilities for the audit of the financial stateme

relation to these matters. Accordingly,
designed to respond to our assessment

financial statements.
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provide a separate opinion on these

ponsibilities described in the Auditor's
nts section of our report, including in
our audit included the performance of procedures
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

(a) Expected credit loss on trade receivab

les (as described in Note 13 of the financial

statements)

The Company has outstanding gross trade
receivables of Rs 934.02 crore as at March
31, 2024, including overdue |/ aged
receivables.

The Company supplies electricity to various
types of customers including  individual
customers with wide ranging characteristics
in the Western Odisha. There exists inherent
exposure to credit risk for these customers,
The Company has acquired this business
wef January 1, 2021 and limited past
experiences are available to estimate credit
loss allowance.

The Company has recognised Expected
Credit Loss (ECL) allowance on ftrade
receivables using its best estimate
considering various factors such as
segregation between government and non-
government consumers, security deposit
available, outcome of the Company’s effort to
reach consumers, their most recent payment

Our audit procedures included the following:

e Obtained an understanding of the
Company’s process and tested internal
confrols associated with the
management's assessment of
determining ECL allowance for trade
receivables.

e Obtained an understanding of the
Mmanagement plan and steps being taken
to collect all receivables including
overdue / aged receivables.

» Evaluated management's assessment of
recoverapility of the outstanding
receivables including recoverability of
overdue/ aged receivables through
inquiry with management, and analysis of
recent collection trends in respect of
receivables particularly aged
receivables.

* Evaluated management's assumption
and judgement relating to collection
considering business environment in
which the Company operates and rights
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behaviour as weli as the fact that electricity is
an essential commodity and regulations
require consumers to clear old dues to get
continuous electricity etc.

Based on the above mechanism and using
its best estimate, the Company has
accounted ECL provision of Rs 421.82 crore
as on the balance sheet date

The appropriateness of the provision for
expected credit loss is subjective due to the
high degree of judgment  applied by
management. Due to the significance of
trade receivables and the related estimation
uncertainty this is considered to be a key
audit matter.

e atidis epr . —————
Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit

matter
available with the Company to recover
amount due from customers for
estimating the amount of ECL allowance.

* Evaluated Mmanagement's continuous
assessment of the assumptions used in
“the credit loss provision computation.
These considerations include whether
there are regular receipts from the
customers and the Company’s past
collection history,

e \Verified mathematical accuracy of
provision computation based on credit
loss estimation model used and other
factors considered by the management,

* Assessed the disclosures in the financial
statements.

* Obtained
representation.

hecessary  management

(b) Accrual of requlatory assets/liabilities for items which are subject matter of true

up in tariff orders (as described in Note 27 of the financial statements)

Being regulated distribution business, tariff of
the Company is determined by the regulator
on cost plus return on equity basis wherein
the cost is subject to prudential norms. The
Company invoices its customers on the basis
of pre-approved tariff which is subject to true
up.

The Company recognizes revenue at the
amount invoiced to customers based on pre-
approved tariff rates. As the Company is
eniitled to a fixed retumn on equity and
applicable incentives, the difference between
the revenue recognized and entitiement as
per the regulation is recognized as regulatory
assets/liabilities. The Company  has
recognized regulatory liability of Rs 716.42
Crore as at March 31, 2024.

Our audit procedures included the foliowing:

* Obtained an understanding of the
Company’s process and tested internal
controls associated with the estimation
and recoverability of such regulatory
deferral balances.

* Read the tariff regulations and tariff
orders and evaluated relevant clauses to
understand Mmanagement's assessment
on allowability of various income and
expenses and consequent recognition/
measurement of regufatory deferral
account balances.

* Discussed with the management to
“understand their assessment on each
qualitative and quantitative factor and
reviewed consistency of the




SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
22 Camac Street

Block ‘B’, 3™ Fioor
Kolkata — 700018, India

Tej Raj & Pal

Chartered Accountants

Plot No. 1278/2256/4294
Govinda Prasad, Bomikhal
Behind Ekamra Film Talkies
Bhubaneswar — 751010

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Accruals are determined based on tariff
regulations and past tariff orders and are
subject to verification and approval by the
regulators. Further the costs incurred are
subject to prudential checks and prescribed
norms.

Judgements are made in determining the
accruals including interpretation of tariff
regulations. Further, in the true-up order, the
regulator has observed that certain expenses
booked in the audited accounts are higher
than the approved costs and disallowed
certain expenses. The regulator has also
stated that currently expenses have been
allowed on the basis of pragmatic approach.
The Company is taking steps considered
appropriate by the management to claim
allowance for disallowed expenses and has
treated these expenses as recoverable/
pass-through to the customer through
subsequent regulatory orders.

Considering  judgements involved in
estimating various-elements of true up order
and resulting regulatory deferral account
balance, we have determined this to be a key
audit matter.

underlying documentation, rules, and
regulations.

o Assessed management's evaluation and
true up review petiton and
correspondences filed with regulators for
the likely outcome in respect of material
disallowances made by the regulators.

o Assessed impact, if any, recognized by
the Company in respect of tariff orders

. received.

¢ Re-calculated workings obtained from
the management to check arithmetical
accuracy of the calculations.

e Assessed disclosures made by the
Company in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS 114 “Regulatory
Deferral Accounts.”

s Obtfained necessary
representation.

management

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a frue and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting pracess. =

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to iss
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auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease {o continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any mgmf:cant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. P
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compiied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or reguiation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Réport) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
we give in the "Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) © We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the
matters stated in the paragraph (i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of

cre Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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() The medification relating to the maifitenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under
Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 114(g);

(@) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “"Annexure 2" to this report;

(h) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024
has been paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

()  With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i,  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements — Refer Note 37 to the financial
statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts inciuding derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (*Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

TR b}y  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any _
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persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and

c)  Based on such audjt procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement,

V. No dividend has been deciared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log} facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that, audit trait
feature is not enabled for direct changes to data when using certain access rights,
as described in note 49 to the financiaj statements. Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trai feature being tampered
with in respect of the accounting software.

ForSRBC&COLLP For Tej Raj & Paf
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 ICAI Firm registration number 304124E

per Shivam Chowdhary Per Dinakar Mohanty

Partner Partner

Membership Number: 067077 - Membership Number: 057266
UDIN: 2406707 7BKFSEV3247 UDIN: 24059390BKEEHH7741
Place of Signature: Bhubaneswar Place of Signature: Bhubaneswar

Date: April 18, 2024 Date: April 18, 2024
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements” of our report of even date

Re: TP Western Odisha Distribution Limited (“the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we state that:

i) (2

(b)

(c)

{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangibles assets.

All Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the
management during the year but there is a regular programme of verification of all
the Property, Plant and Equipment over a period of three years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its asseis. In accordance with the planned programme, a portion of the Property,
Plant and Equipment was verified during the year. Read with note 4.09 to the
financial statements, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not hold any land in its name. As regard the buildings, thereon,
the Company retains operational rights over the buildings used for the purpose of
carrying out distribution business under a license granted by the Odisha Electricity
Regulatory Commission. Thus, verificaiion of title deeds is not applicable for such
buildings.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible
assets during the year ended March 31, 2024.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory during the year.

In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable and the coverage and:--..

the procedure of such verification by the management is approprle};é B

iscrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory \A{ej’é ot‘_::;\-,g,_'-."--'i; f

noticed on such physical verification.
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As disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from
banks during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.
Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the financial
statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks
are in agreement with the unaudited books of accounts of the Company. The
Company does not have sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five
crores in aggregate from financial institutions during the year on the basis of
security of current assets of the Company.

During the year, the Company has provided unsecured loans to its employees as
follows:
(Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars Loans
Aggregate amount provided during the year
- Employees 23.48

Balancing outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect above
cases {post-acquisition of business) ) -

Employees 2.00

During the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any party other than as mentioned above.

(b)

(c)

(d)

During the year, the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in
the nature of loans are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. Further, during
the year, the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loan to firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other party.

The Company has granted loans during the year to employees where the schedule
of repayment of principal has been stipulated and the repayment of receipts are
regular.

There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to
companies, firms, limited fiability partnerships or any other parties which are
overdue for more than ninety days.

,g‘,“-",x'f:/'?/’ \
There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companie%ff.:ﬁ TSI
limited liability partnerships or any other parties which was fallen due duri‘\t@rg;;ihe

P
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year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to setile the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

() The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or withaut specifying any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, limited fiability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security given by the Company post-
acquisition of business in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of
the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the service of distribution of
electricity, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records
have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination
of the same.

(@) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable
io it though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed
by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable. During the year, the Company did not have any undisputed
dues towards sales-tax, service tax, duty of excise, duty of customs and value
added tax.

(b) The dues of provident fund, value added tax and services tax have not been
deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

- \
[
e
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ATolAE Period to which
Name of the Nature of (Rs in the amount Forum where
statute dues relates dispute is pending
crores) . .
(Financial Year)
The Finance . - :
Act, 1994 Service tax 75.86 Aprif14 to Jun'18 | CESTAT
E .
EPE SMPAc, Provident Fund | 8.78 Nov'98 to Mar'15 saoeur iibunal
1952 Bhubaneswar
EPF & MP Act, . :
1 95F2 MPiAct Provident Fund | 2.12 Nov'98 to Oct'13 | High Court
Orissa VAT Act, May'11, Feb'13, | GST Officer,
les T 2
2004 walesTex gzs June’13 to July'13 | Sambalpur

There are no dues of goods and services tax, employees' state insurance, income tax,
sales-tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and other statutory dues which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii}  The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded
in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as
income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) (@) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defau[tef"l.by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority. 3

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

() The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(b)
(i) (a)
(b)
(c)
(i) (a)
(b)

(c)
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The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public
offer / further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential alloiment or private placement of
shares /fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under
audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x}{b} of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noiiced
or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT
— 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit
procedures.

The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii){b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

{xiii}  Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the..

Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed m tthe"
notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting stamd?fds
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{a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report,
for the period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934 (2 of 1934)
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause (xvi{a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi}(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d)  According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the
Group has five CICs which are registered with the Reserve Bank of India and two
ClICs which are not required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year as well as in the
immediately preceding financial year respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our aftention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet dafg. We '
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Compa ]
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We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.
~
(xx) (@) Inrespect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are
required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies
Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135
ofthe Act. This matter has been disciosed in note 33.2 to the financial statements,

(b)  There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required
to be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section
(6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 33.2
to the financial statements.

(xxi)  The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on hlause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP - For Tej Raj & Pal
Chartered Accountants - Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003  ICAI Firm Registration Number: 304124E

per Shivam Chowdhary — /’f per Dinakar Mohanty

Partner — Partner

Membership Number: 067077 Membership Number: 059390
UDIN: 24067077BKFSEV3247 UDIN: 24059390BKEEHH7741
Bhubaneswar Bhubaneswar

Aprit 18, 2024 April 18, 2024
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the financial statements
of TP Western Odisha Distribution Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial confrols with reference to financial statements of TP
Western Odisha Distribution Limited (“the Company”} as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Nofe
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of jts business, including adherence
to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibifity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company"s internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicabie to an audit of internal financial centrols, both issued
by ICAlL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and =5,
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evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, inciuding the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financia! statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Finangial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
“of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such interal financial controls with reference to
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control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

) o] 5

per Shivam Chowdhary
Partner
Membership Number: 067077
UDIN: 24067077BKFSEV3247
Bhubaneswar
April 18, 2024

For Tej Raj & Pal
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number; 304124E

per Dinakar Mohanty

Partner

Membership Number: 059390
UDIN: 24059390BKEEHH7741
Bhubaneswar

April 18, 2024



TP Western Odisha Distribution Limited
CIN : U4C1090R20G20PLEN35230

Wesco Corporate Building Burla, Besides Burla Police Station, Burla, Sambalpur, Odisha, India, 768017

Website: www tpwestemedisha.com; Email:tpwodl@tpwestarnedisha.com
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

The accompanying notes Form an integrai part of the Financlal Statemants

¥in Crores
NOTE As at As at
HO March 31, 7024 March 31, 2023
1. ASSETS
(A) Non-current assets
{a) Propety, ptant and equipment 4 2,861.02 2,102.17
{b) Capital work-in-progress 5 511.71 239.38
{¢) Intangible assets 6 95.89 59.32
(d) Financial assets
1] Other financial assets 7 261.51 339.68
(e) Deferred tax assets (net) B 80.82 18.13
{F Non-current tax assets (nat) N = 7.89
{0} Other non-current assets 10 18.33 21.39
Total non-current assets (&) 3,829.28 2,787.96
{B) Current assets
(a} Inventories 11 57.28 42.75
{b) Ffnancial assets
m Investmants 12 265.39 294.35
{iiy Trade receivables 13 512.20 647.58
(i Unbiiled revenus 04 63 431.25
[iv) Cash and cash equivalents 14 389.00 745.70
(v} Bank balances other than (iv) above 14 1,876.25 1,685.13
{wi) Other financial assets 15 47.75 23.24
{¢) Other current assets 16 4.84 B8.32
Total current assets (B) 3,557.34 3,878.28
[C) Total assets (A+B) 7,38=6.62 5,666.24
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{A) EQUITY
{&) Equity share capltal 17 ©47.98 480.20
{b) Other equity 18 228.58 153.80
Total equity (A) 875.56 634.00
{B} LIABILITIES
HNon-current liabilities
(a} Financial liabjlities
(i) Borrowings 19 389.84 206.80
(B) Provisions 20 322.59 218.70
{c) Capital Grant and Consumer coniribution towards capltal assets 21 1,503.69 1,318.27
{d) Other non-current liabilities 22 665.86 484.92
Total non-current liabilities (1} 2,981.98 2,228.69
Current liabHities
(a) Financial liahllities
(i} Borrowings 23 18.97 16.93
{in Trade Payables
{a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small nterprises 24 46.96 44,14
{b) Total outstanding dues of trade payables ather than micro enterprises and smalf 24 898.4% 797.12
enterprises
(i) Other financial liabifities 25 1,749.66 1,546.40
(b} Current tax liabilities (net) 28 14.71 -
(c) Provisions 20 17.90 19,96
(d) Other current habilities 26 164.97 151.95
Total current liabilitias (2) 2,911.66 2,576.55
{€) Total liabilities (1+2) 5,793.64 4,805.24
(D} Reqgulatory deferral account - liabillty 27 716.42 1,227.00
(E) Total equity and liabilities {A+C+D) 7.386.62 6.666.24

As per our report of aven date

For SRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
TCAL FRN: 324982E/ E300003
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per Shivam Chowdhary
Partner

Mambership No.0E7077
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Director
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Chief Exerutive O )
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Piace: Bhubaneswar

Date: April 18, 2024
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Chartered Accountants
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Chief
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TP Western Qdisha Distribution Limited
CIN : U401090R2020PLCO35230

Wesco Corporate Building Burla, Besides Burla Police Station, Burla, Sambalpur, Odisha, India, 768017
Website: wwny tpwesternodisha.com; Email:tpwodl@tpwesternodisha.com

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LDSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

¥ in Craores
NOTE NO Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
I. Revenue from operations 28 6,615.00 £,881.02
II. Otherincome z9 183.98 141.61
III. Total income {I+II} 5,802.98 7,022.63
1v. Expenses
Cost of power purchased and transmission charges 30 5,6562.99 5,094.80
Employee benefits expanse (net) 31 503.66 414 89
Finance costs 32 99.78 81.44
Drepreciation and amortization expenses 4 185.64 111.99
Other expenses 33 708.66 557.70
Total expenses (IV) Z.160.73 6,260.82 |
V. Profit/(Loss) bafore movement in regulatory deferral batance and tax (III-1V) {357.75) 761.81
Add/{Less): Net movement in regulatory deferral balances 27 520.58 (637.13)
Add/f{Less): Net movement in regulatory deferral balances in respact of earlier years 27 0.57 5.89
Add/{Less); Deferred tax payable / (recoverable) 27 {62.68) (7.54)
458.47 {638.78)
VI. Profit before tax 100.72 123.03
VI1. Tax Expenses
{1) Current tax 34 73.92 49.43
{2) Current tax in respect of earlier years 34 14.70 (10.00)
{3) Deferred tax 34 (45.92) (7.54)
{4} Deferred tax in respect of garlier years 34 {16.76) E
VIIL Profit for the year {VI-VII) 74.78 01.08
IX. Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (net) 35 B =
Total othar comprehensive income for the year (IX} S =
X. Total comprehensive income for the year (VITI+IX) 74.78 81.0
XI. Earnings per equity share (face value ¥ 10/- sach)
Earnings per equity share [excluding reguiatary income/(expense) (net)]
Basic and Diluted (in ) 38 (5.56) 15.78
Eamnings per equity share [including requlatory incorne/(expense) (nat)]
Basic and Diluted (in ¥) g 1,55 2.53
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our repert, of even date
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Chartered Accountants
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Accounting Policy
Cash Nows from operating activities are reported using the indiract methad, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effacts of transactions of non-cash nature
and itsm of income or sxpenses assediated with investing or fingncing cashfiows. The cash flows from operating, nvesting and finanang activities of the Company are
segrageted and prasented separately. The Company considers all highly liguid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject ko an
insignificant risk of ehanges In value to be cash equivalants.

T in Crares

Year ended ¥car Ended

March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023

A, Cash flow from aparating activities
Prafit bafore rax 100.72 123.03
Adjustments for -

Adjustriants to recoticile profit and loss to nat cash provided by operating activitios

Depreciztian and ameortizahon expenses 145.64 111.89
(Reversal)/Provision for Claims & Compensation (2.43) 0.58
Interest on Consumer Security Dapesit 7473 63.34
Gain an saie/ far Value of Investments (7.18) (5.82}
interest expance 2508 17.50
Intarest income {138.27} (96.34)
Amortization of consumer contribution (75.56} {67.72)
Allowance for doubtful dabts 238.86 129.41
Gperating profit before working capital changes 397.57 276.67
Adj far in oparating assars;
[nventories {14.53) {6.31)
Trad= recavables (103.52} {39.07)
unbilled revanue 26.52 {37.16)
Qther financial asssts - currant {12.70y (1B 56)
Other current assets. 348 5.27
Other financial assats - non currant (0,04} 2.51
Other nan-currenk assets fo.03) 2.68
Adjugtments for Increase/ (d 1in i ilite
Trads payables 10420 249.13
Gner financial fiabilites - current [7.25} (23.86)
Grher cuirent labilities 13.02 (84.89)
Cther non-carrent liablities 10123 {2.72)
Pravisien - nan current 103.89 424
Provision - carrent 0.3 (29.41)
Regulatory deferral acesunt- Liability (510.58) 593.36
Cash generated from/{used in) from operations 0.37 980.88
Taxes pald (Het of Refund) (66.02) (31.04)
Net cash flow ganerated from/ (used in) operating achivities + (A} (65.65) 549.84

8. Cash Aow from hvesting activitics
Capital expenditure on proparty, plant and equipment (Including capital work in progress and net off capital advances

and creditors) (B77.23) {618.11)
Capital expenditure on intangible ascats (61.87) {33.48)
Interest racelyed 126.45 114.56
Proceeds fram sale of Current Investments 2,010.2% F427L
Purchtase of Current Investments {1,974,15) (837.96)
Reposits made with banks ot considered as cash and cash equivalants 14,995.41) {2,258.99)
Deposits maturad with banks not considered as cash and cash squivalants 4,882.5L 1,723.05
Het cash Aow used in iavesting activities ) (883.41) {1,168.22}

C. Cash Aow from financing activitias
Proceeds from issue of shares 85.57 B1.33
Interast paid {90.07) {52.93)
Proceeds from cansumer security deposit {net} 129.99 17247
Peoceeds fram contribution fer capital warks 37.64 187.02
Proceeds from subsidles towards cost of capital azeets (net) 250.25 238.27
Proceeds from Lang Term Borrowlnps 200.02 17373

pay of Lang Term ing: {15.98) -

Proceeds from Short Yerm Borrowings (net) 159 -
Repayment from Short Tarm Berrowings [nat} - (130.24)
Het cash fiow gonerated from Rnancing activities (<) 598.36 639.70
Net increase/(decrase) in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C) (256.70) 421.32
Cash and cash equivalznts as at beginning of the year 745,70 324,38
Cash and cash aquivalens st the end of year 389.00 F45.70

N h ing and ities 1

Issuance of equity sharas for Consideratinns other than Cash (Refer Hote No 17) 8231 £8.93

= Net of amount spent towards corporate social responsihility 261 136

As at As ap
Cash and Cash equivalent includes: March 31, 2029 March 31, 2023
< T

(@) Balances with banks - in curent accounts

[B} Deposits with banks original maturity of less than 3 months
(c} Cash on hand

[d) Chaguss on hand

Total Cash and Cash equivajants
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financlal Statemants

As per aur report of even date
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TP Western Odisha Distribution Limited
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

n No of shares Amogunt
Particulars T in ctores
Balance as at April 1, 2023 48,02,00,000 480.20
Issued during the year 16,77,81,100 167.78
Balance as at March 31, 2024 64,79,81,100 647.98

= No of shares Amount
Particulars # in crares
Balance as at Aprll 1, 2022 35,99,34,600 359.93
Issued during the year 12,02,65,400 12Q.27
Balance as at March 31, 2023 48,02,00,000 430.20
B. OTHER EQUITY
Particulars Retained Total

earnings
¥ in crores Z in crores
EBalance as at April 1, 2023 153.80 153.80
Profit for the year 74.78 74.78]
Other Comprehensive Income/{Expense) for the year - -
Total comprehensive incoma 74.78 74.78
Balance as at March 31, 2024 228.58| 228.58(
Particulars Retained Total
earnings
2 in crores ¥ in crores
Balance as at April 1, 2022 62.72 62.72
Prefit for the year 91.08 21.08
Gther Comprehensive Income/{Expense) for the year - -
Total comprehensive Income 91.08| 01.08
Balance as at March 31, 2023 152.80 153.80|

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
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TP Western Odisha Distribution Limited
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

Note 1
Corporate Information

TP Western Odisha Distribution Limited ("TPWODL" or the "Company™} CIN No-U401000R20205GC035230 is a public limited cempany, domicied
and incorperated in India and is engsged in the business of distribution of electricity in Western Odisha. The Cempany has been incerperated on
December 30, 2020 under the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended). Pursuant to vesting order issued by the Odisha Electricity Regulatory
Commission (‘OERC') dated December 28, 2020, the Company acquired the business of distribufing power in Western Orissa ('business?) from
the WESCO (Western Electricity Supply Company of Odisha Limited & WESCO utility) with effect from January 1, 2021 (vesting date).
Accordingly, the Company is a licensee to carry out the function of distribution and retail supply of electricity covering the distribution circles of
Rourkela, Sambalpur, Bhawanipatna, Bolangir and Bargargh in the state of Odisha for a year of 25 years effective from January 1, 2021, which
also marked the commencement of cornmercial operations for the Company.

The registered office of the company is located at The Wesco Corporate Building Burlz, Besides Burla Police Station, Burla, Sambalpur, 768017,
Odisha.

The Company is subsidiary of The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL} which holds 51% equity shares and balance 49% equity shares are held
by GRIDCGO Ltd.

Note 2 Material accounting policies

2.1 Statement of compliance
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified under the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) read with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended from time to
time}. The Company &lso applies requirement of Division IT to Schedule II1 of the Companies Act 2013, while presenting financial
statements. During the year, certain amendments to Ind AS have become applicable and been adepted by the Company. However, their
applications did not have any material impact an financial position and financial perfermance of the Company.

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation
The Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have
been measured at fair value

- gertain financial assets and jiabilities measured at fair value (Refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments), and
- employee benefit expenses {refer note 20 for accounting policy)

The financlal statements are presented in ¥ and all valves are rounded to the nearest crores (¥ 00,00,000), except when otherwise
indicated.

The company has prapared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going cencern.

Note 3 :
Other Material Accounting Policies, critical accounting estimates and judgements

Accounting policies are set out along with respective explanatory notes where it specifically relates to such transactions or balances. Other
material accounting policies are set out below:

3.1 Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (), which is the functional currency of the Company.

Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the company at functional currency spot rates at the transaction first qualifies
for recegnition. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the
Balance Sheet date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Lass.

3.2 Current versus non-current classification '
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. An asset treated as
current when it is:
~ expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in nermal operating cycle,
- held primarily for the purpose of trading,
- expected to be realized within twelve manths after the reporting year, or
- cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settie a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting year.

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is current when:
- it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
- it Is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
- it is due to be settled within twelve manths after the reporting year, or
- there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting vear.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle,




TP Western Odisha Distribution Limited
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

3.3

3.4

3.4.1

3.4.2

3.4.3

3.4.4

3.4.5

3.4.6

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial lability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Finandial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Except for trade receivables, financial assets and financial liabilities are inittally measured at fair value, Trade receivables are measured at
the transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition, Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest income or
expense over the relevant year. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter year.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
canvention in the market place.

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets,

Financial assets at amortised cost
A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost using effective interest rates if both of the following conditions are met:

(i} the asset is held within a business model whose objective Is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and

(i) contractual terms of the assets give rise an specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {(FVTPL)

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit
and loss,

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income {FYTOCI) (debt instruements)
A ‘financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both the following criteria are met:

(a) the objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash fiows and selling the financial assets, and
(b) the asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI
Impairment of financial asset

The Company applies the expected credit loss {(ECL) model for recognizing impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised
cost, trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset not designated as at FVTPL.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the
scope of Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Cantracts with Customers”, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses using the simplified approach permitted under Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments”.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allewance for trade receivables, the Compeany has used a practical
expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into
account historical credit [oss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Derecognition of financial asset
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecagnised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

- the rights to receive Cash flows from the ASSET have expired, or

- the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full withocut material delay to a third party under a “pass-through’ arrangement; and either (@) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred contral of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred cantrol of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Offsatting of financial asset

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intenticn to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultanecusly,
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3.5

3.5.1

3.5.2

3.5.3

3.5.4

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or lass, loan and borrowings,
payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, security deposit
from electricity consumars, consumer contributions for work under progress, capital creditors etc.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subseguent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

- Financial liabilitles at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liahilities at fair value through profit or loss inclede financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or joss are designated as such at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to
changes in own credit risk are recognised in OCI. These gains/ lasses are not subseguently transferred te P&L. However, the Company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of
profit and Ioss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities at amortised cast (Loans and borrowings)

This is the category mest relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recagnised in profit er loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds recetved, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the Tiahility is discharged or cancelted or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
medified, such an exchange or medification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recogniticn of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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3.6

3.7

3.7.1

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability iIs measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assurning that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability te generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabifities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant te the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
cbservable.

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservabie.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorizatien (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and other assets/ liabilities acquired as part of
business combination,

For the purpose of fair valug disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Lease Accounting

At inception of contract, the Company assesses whether the Contract is or contains a lease. A contract is or contains a lease If the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a year of time in exchange for consideration. At inception or on
reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates consideration in the contract to each lease
coempanent on the basis of their relative standalone price.

As a Lessee
Right-of-use Assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease, Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received and estimate of costs to dismantle. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets,

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises [ease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. In calculating the present value of lease paymenis, the Company generally uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease cormmencement date if the discount rate implicit in the lease is not readily deterrninable.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. The carrying amount is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in index or
rate. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there Is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short term leases and leases of low value of assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases. It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
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3.8

3.9

3.10

Dividend

The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend %o equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorised, and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is
zpproved by the shareholders. A correspending amount is recognised directly in equity.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it Is recoegnised as incomne in
equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset,

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinatiens are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the
consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-contrelling interests in the acquiree.
Acguisition-related costs are expensed in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are received, with the exception of
the costs of issuing debt or equity securities that are recognised in accordance with Ind AS 32 and Ind AS 109,

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their acquisition date fair values. For
this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their
acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the
following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

- Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognized and measured in
accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

- Potential tax effects of temparary differences and carry forwards of an acquire that exist at the acquisition date or arise as a result of
the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

- When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, ecoromic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date, This
includes the separaticn of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquire.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assurned. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the
Company re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the
precedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the
fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in
equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as
capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company's cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those
units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more freguently when there is an
indicatien that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated te the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill as well as other assets, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the
Company reports pravisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recegnised at that
date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments, The measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date,
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3.n

3.12

Critical accounting estimates and judgemants

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, the Management is required to make judgements, estimates and assurnptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources, The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects beth current and future periods. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected fine item in the financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

1. Estimates related to accrual of regulatory deferrals and revenue recognition (refer note 27 and 28)

2. Estimation of expected credit loss (refer note 13}

3. Estimation of defined benefit ¢bligation {refer note 20)

4. Estimations used for determination of tax expenses and tax balances (refer note 34)

5. Judgement to estimate the amount of provision required or to determine required disclosure related te litigation and claims against the
Company — (refer note 37)

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have & financial impact on the Cornpany and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

New and amended standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has natified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to
amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The Company applied for the first-
time these amendments.

(i} Pefinltion of Acceunting Estimates ~ Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of
errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement technigues and inputs te develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

(i) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amandments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are mere useful by replacing the requirement for entities
to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance an

how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company's disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or
presentatien of any items in the Company’s financial statements.
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Note 4 Property, plant and equipment :
4.01 Accounting Policy @

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes purchase price (net of trade discount and rebates) and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset te its working
condition for its intended use and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the Ind AS 23. Capital work in
progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Depreciation on regulated assets
Depreciation commences when an asset is ready for its intended use,

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment in respect of electricity business of the Company covered under Part B of Schedule II of
the Companies Act, 2013, has been provided on the straight line method at the rates specified in vesting order and tariff regulation
notified by regulatory commission, In tariff regulation, 2022 notified in December, 2022 which shall remain in force for control period FY
2023-24 to FY 2027-28, the regulatory commission has changed useful life of certain assets and has provided that depreciation shall be
provided as per rates notified in these regulations for first 15 years and remaining depreciable value after a peried of 15 years shali be
spread over the balance useful life of the assets.

Depreciation on meters and vehicles

Depreciation on single phase smart meters and other meters has been provided in the straight line method at an useful life of 8 years
and 5 years respectively. Depreciation on car purchased under employee car policy has been provided in the straight line method at an
useful life of 5 years.

Rate of deprediation of the property, plant and equipments are as follows:

Type of asset Rate (Assets Rate (New
transferred on | assets acquired

acquisition) past acquisition)

Buildings 1.B0% 3.34%

Plant and Machinery, Transmission lines and cable network (excluding IT 3.80% 4.67%

equipments & Meter}

Plant and Machinery (Meter) 3.80% 12.50% - 20.00%

Furniture and fixtures 4.55% 6.332%

Office equipment including IT equipment 9% - 12,.86% 6.33% - 15.00%

Moter vehicles 12.86% 9.50%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reparting pariod, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. Based on the Vesting Order/ tariff regulations, the residual value of the
assets acquired post-acquisition is considered at 10% of the Original Cost and 5% of the Original Cost on assets transferred on
acquisition.

Derecognition
An iterm of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise frem
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipments is
determined as the difference between the saies proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the statement of
profit and |oss,

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there Is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount, An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or group of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of
the Company‘s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.

Impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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TP WESTERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

NOTE 4.05
The Company does not own ary land in its name, As per terms of vesting order, land has been given an Jease to the Company for a nominal consideration of ¥ 1 per year, till the expiry of power
distribution license. The Company has retained operational rights over these Jands used for the purpose af carrying out distribution business under the licanse granted by OERC. The impact of
applying lease accounting as per Ind AS 115 - 'Leases' to these leases is not material.
Beneficial ownership of immovable properties constructed over the above {ands viz; bulldings have been transferred to the Company with effect from acquisition date. As per fterms of vesting
order, title for the said Immovable properties continues ta be in the name of erstwhile administratlon and Companies.

NOTE 4.07
Also Refer Note 42 for assets created with Government Fund and used by TPWODL

NOTE 4,08

As per the terms of the Vesting Qrder and the Carve Out Order, If the Company has been vested with ene or more items of the property, plant and equipment created cut of the Goverament
Grant and/er consurmer contribution, then It will not be allowad depreclation on those assets for determination of Tariff under the para 44 (a){ii) of the Vesting Order. This is irrespective of
whether the grant and/ar consumer contribution ltzblity has been transferred to the Company or not, Based on balancing of assets and liabilities transferred to the Company in the Opening
Balance Sheet as per the Carve Out Order, the management believes that the Company is allowed to claim depreciation on the entire carrying amount of PPE transferred 1o i pursuant to the
Vesting and the Carve-Out Orders Hence, this requirement will not have any impact on financial position and financial performance of the Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024.
Further, as per the Vesting Order and the Carve Gut Order, the Company Is reguired te viilise any amount realised through depreciation toward meeting certaln opening Niabllities transferred
(*additional serviceable Fabilites™}. If there are any shortages in realisation to meet these additional serviceable liabilities, then the CERC will aliow such shortfall threugh Aggregate Revenue
Requirement (ARR?) adjustrent,

NOTE 4,69 Physical verification
In accordance with the physical verification policy adopted by the Company, an independent party has carried out physical verification in respect of a portion of PPE belenging to the Company.
Based on reports issued by the independent party and the recondiliation prepared by the management, there are no material shertages which have been identifled during the process of physical
verification of PPE. During the physical verification process, third party has also iwdentified certain excess aumber of assets, which are still under recondliation. Subsequent, to such reconciliation
these assets will be recorded in the books of the Company at nominal value and therefore, it will not Impact the financlal statements of the Company.

NOTE 4,10 Property Plant and Equip It out of fund
Cansidering the provisions of the Odisha Electricity Regulatery Commission Distribution (Conditiens of Supply) Code, 2019, the management believes that It has legal right and ownership over the
property, plant and equipment (PPE} which are directly funded by the consumers and are being used to supply electricity to the consumers. Accordingly, during the year, the company has
capitalized PPE amounting to ¥ 171,91 Crores (Marck 31, 2023: ¥ £13.49 Crores) and recognised the correspending llability under the head consumer contributien, Depreciation on PPE at well as
amortisation of ¥ 57.93 Crares {(March 31, 2023: ¥ 49.53 Crores) are being recognised in the Statement af Profit and Lass, having ne net impact on profit or Joss of the Company.

The management helieves that the accounting adopted by the Company reflects substance of the arrangement and is also in compliance with the applicable requirements, Based on physical
verification poficy adopted by the Company, physical verification of these assets is being carried out along with ather assets of the Company,

NOTE 4,11 Refer note 19 for charge created against borrowings.

HOTE 5
Capital work In progress
Accounting Palicy
Capital work In progress is stated at cost, net of accurnulated impairment loss, i any,

- As At Capitalized As At
Particul
articylars April 1,2023 Additions March 31,2024
Capltal work In progress
{majorly pertains to plant and
machinery, transmissian lines 239.38 1,254.05 981.72 511,74
and cable network)
Tatal 239.38 1,254.05 981.72 511.71
- As At et Capitalized As At
ESTEichlNr April 1,2022 Additions March 31,2023
Capital work in progress
{majorly partains to plant and
machinery, transmission lines 77.30 808.34 646.26 235.38
and cable netwark)
77.30 808.34 646.26 2348.58
Total

Project in progress includes setting up substations, Installations of transformer and cable networks at various locations In western part of Qdisha. CWIP Includes closing capital inventory of

237,38 Crores as at March 31,2024 (March 31,2D23: ¥118.72 Crores},
Refer note 19 for charge created against Borrowings,

as at March 31,2024%

NOTE 5.01 CWIP ageing Scheduf

Amount in CWEFP for a period of
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
years
Projects in progress 467,52 34.54 6,62 303 511,71
Prajects temporarily suspended =) - - - -
Total 467,52 34.54 6,62 3,03 511.71
CWIP ageing Schadule as at March 31,2023*
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Bocejthan}3 Total
years
Projects In progress 224,51 10.9% 3.88 - 239,38
Projects temporarily suspended - g B = -
Total 224,51 10.99 3.88 = 239,38
* CWIP ageing schedute has been prepared from the date of acquisition of business by the Company.

NOTE 5.02

CWIP Completlon Schedule whose completien is overdue or has exceeded jts cost compared to its original plan as at March 31, 2024

To be completed in
Particulars Less than 1 More than 3
year 1-2 years 2-3 years s
Government funded Projects 181.44 - - -
Projects temporatily ded - - - =
Total 181,44 N - -

Post acquisition of business, there are no projects with costs overrun or exceeding the ptanped timelines for complation as on March 31, 2023,
P .




TP WESTERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

NOTE 6 Intangible Assets
Accounting Poficy
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight line methed at the rates specified in vesting order and tariff
regulation notified by regulatory commission. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting year, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Derecognition of Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is -derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or dispesal. Gains or
lossaes arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Useful lives of Intangible Assets

Type of assets Rate {New assets
acquired post
acquisition)

Computer softwares 30%
Description As at As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Cost
Balance as at the beginning of the year 68.00 34.52
Additions 61.87 33.48
Balance as at the end of the year 129.87 68.00
Accumulated amortization
Balance as at the beginning of the year 8.68 1.56
Amortization expense 25.30 7.12
Balance as at the end of the year 33.98 8.68

Net carrying amount 95.89 50.32




TP WESTERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTEON LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

Note 7
Other financial assets - non current
{Unsecured and considered good, at amortised cost)

Deposits with banks*
Security Deposit to various authorities
Gther receivable

*Earmarked balances agalnst consumer security deposits and consumer contribution for work under progress.

Note 8
Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred Tax Asset (net) {Refer note 34}

Note 9A
Non-current tax assets

Advance income tax/ tax deducted at source (net of provision}
Note 9B

Current tax liabilities

Income tax payahle (net)

Note 10
Other non-current assets

{a) Capitsl advances
Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful

b

Tt

Receivable from Government {Commission on ED Collection-WESCO)
Unsecured, consldered goad
Doubtful

(e} Others
Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Advances

Total
Naote 11
Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value)

Accounting policy

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Z in Crore T in Crore

256.69 334.90
1,75 1.54
3.07 3.24
261.51 339.68
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
T in Crore % in Crore
80.82 18,13
B0.B2 18.13
As at As at
March 21, 2024 March 31,2023
% in Crore % in Crore
- 7.89
- 7.89
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
% in Crora Zin Crore
14.71 =
14.71 -
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2 in Crora € in Crore
0.01 3.10
0.01 3.10
17.59 17,59
17.5% 17,59
0.73 9.70
1.07 1.07
1.80 1,77
1.07 1.07
0.73 0.70
18.33 21.39

11.1 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value {NRV). Cost of inventory Includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, Costs of inventories are determéned on moving weighted average basis.
NRV Is the estimated selllng price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,
Unserviceable/damaged stores and spares are identified and written down based on technical evaluation.

Note 12

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 33, 2023
¥ in Crore % in Crore
Stares &nd spares 57.28 42.75
57.28 42,75
Refer Note 19 for charge created against borrowings.
Current investrnents
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Zin Crore Z in Crore
Investment carried at fair value through profit or loss (unquoted)
Liguid mutual fund 265.32 294.35
265.39 294.35
Details of investments in liguid mutual fund units as at March 31,2024
Class of investment Units NAY Z in Crore
Nos {T}
SBI Liquid Fund Direct Grawth Plan 1,75,543.20 3,779.28 66.34
UTI Liquid Fund Direct Growth 88,871.40 3,957.97 35.18
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liguid Fund- Growth- Direct Plan 12,38,553.92 389.68 48.26
Kotak Liquid Fund Direct Plan Growth 51,487.83 4,879.04 25.12
1CICI Prudential Liguid Fund- Direct Plan- Growth 7,03,238.02 357.41 25.13
Tata Liguid Fund Direct Plan- Growth 92,381.58 3,810.25 35.20
HDPFC Liguid Fund- Direct Plan- Growth 63,574.01 4,743.66 30.16
Total 268.30
Deralls of jnvestmenss in liguid mutua] tund units a5 at March 31,2022
Class of investmaent Units NAV T in Crore
Nos (%)
SB1 Liguid Fund Direct Growth Plan 3,17,541.47 3,523,30 111.88
UTI Liguid Fund Direct Growth 1,02,322.72 3,689.41 37.75
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liguid Fund- Growth=- Direct Plan 19,60,866,87 363.08 71.20
Rippon india Mutual Fund- Growth- Direct Plan 71,512.16 5,506.94 39.38
Tata Liguid Fund Direct Plan- Growth S6,128,82 3,551.41 34.15

Total

294.35




TP WESTERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAE STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOQR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2824

Note 13
Trade Receivables - At Amortised Cost As at As at
(Unsecuvred utifess otherwise stated) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
% in Crore ¥ in Crore
Current
Considerad good 346.73 469.42
Significant increase (n the credit risk 587.29 361.08
934.02 830.50
Less: Allowance lor doubtful debts {expected credit loss) {421.82) {182.96)
Total 512.20 6547.54
Note:
i The Company holds security deposits from consumners amounling to ¥ 1206.43 Crore {March 31,2023: ¥ 1076.49 Crore).

There are na outstanding receivables due from directors or octher officers of the Company.

3 Refer note 19 for charge created against borrawings.

4 Refler note 41 for related party disclosure.

5 Trade receivabies include amount of ¥ 587.29 creres (March 31, 2023: ? 361.08 crores) from consumers who are inactive/ permanently discannected, temporarily
disconnected and/ or were nen-government/non-paying/low-paying as at March 31, 2624.
The Company has acquired power distribution business of Western Electricity Supply Company (WESCO) Utility w.e.f. January 01, 2021, The management beheves that
cailection data related te pre-acquisition year is not relevant to assess expected credit lass (ECL) allowance an receivables in the post-acquisition year. In this scenario,
the Cermpany has recognised Expected Credit Loss {ECL) allowance on trade receivables using s best estimate considering among other aspects factors such as
segregation between govermment and non-government consumers, security deposit available, outcome of the Company’s effort to reach consumers, their most recent
payment behaviour as well as the fact Lhat electricity is an essential cemmedity and regulatlions will require consumers ta clear old dues te get confinueous electricity.
Post-acquisition of power dislribution business from the WESCO, the Company's continuous endeavour has been to raduce ATEC losses, reduce provisional billing and
improve collaction through better reach to consumers as well as other measures. In the process, the Company had initially faced several challenges induding more than
one Covid waves, Cyclones and delays in appointment/ working of melering, billing and collecttion (MBC) agencies for reasons beyond control of the Company. The
Company successfully dealt with these challenges. It is continuously working toward reducing provisional billing and improving overall coilection efficiency by changing
payment behaviour of consumers. As at March 31, 2024, the Company has outstanding receivables amounting Lo 7 934.02 Crores and has accurmnulaled ECL allowance of
2 421.82 Crores against lrade receivabies. The management is confident it will be able to cellect most of the putstanding receivables as it increases its reach to the
consumears and also considering that efectricity is an essential commaedity for all consumers Accordingly, the management believes the above ECL allowance reflects besl
estimate and is appropriate as per Ind AS 109 - Financial Instrumenis.

& The management has formulated a mechanism for receiving and addressing customer complaints including those related to billing and receivables outstanding. The
management has identified disputed receivables basis information available with the company.

7 The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the large customer are either industrial/ corporate or government entities and remaining customer base is
large and widely dispersed. The Company also helds security deposits from consumers

&, Trade Receivables Ageing schedule as at March 31,2024 £ in Crore

Particulars Quistanding for following years from due date of payment # Total
Not due LE::Q;’::: & 6 M‘]Y]::rs =1 1,-2 Years 2-3 years Morf than 3 years

Current

{i} Undisputed Trade Receivables
a) Considered good 2 87.57 59.24 82.70 40.70 73.72 343.93

(ii) Disputed Trade Receivables

b} Significant increase in credit risk - 45.26 116.15 220.39 B88.15 117.34 587.29
c) Credit Impaired - - - - - = -
a) Considered good = 0.08 0.47 - 2.25 2 2.80
b) Significant increase in credit risk - - = = = & =
c) Credit Impaired - -

- 132,91 | 175.86 303.09 ) 131.10 191.06 | 934.02

Total
9. Trade Receivables Ageing schedule as at March 31,2023 ¢ in Crere
Particulars Outstanding for following years from due date of payment # Total
Less than 6 | & Months -1
Not due Months Year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Current

{i} Undisputed Trade Receivables
a) Considered good - 126.29 135.20 185.15 20.53 = 467.17
b} Sigrificant increase in credit risk - 91.62 97.25 152.26 19.95 = 361.08
c} Credit Impaired - = - - - - =

(ii) Disputed Trade Receivables =
a}) Considered good - = = 2.25 - = 2.25
b) Significant increase in credit risk > = - = = = =
¢} Credit Impaired - 2 = - - = =

Total = 217.91 232.45 339.66 40.48 = 830,5¢

# Where due date of payment is not available date of ransaction has been consldered

Nole:

(a) The ageing has been prepared afler adjusting the collections In accordance with the Odisha Eleclricity Reguiatory Commission Disiribution (Conditions of Supply) Code, 2019

(b) Trade receivable ageing schedule has been prepared from the date of acquisiticn of business by the Company.

As at As at
10. Movement in the allowance for doubtful trade receivables March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
% in Crore { in Crore
Balance at the beginning of the year 182 .98 53.55
Add: Expected credit losses lor the year (Refer Mote 33) 238.86 129.41

Balance at the end of the year 421.82 182.96




TP WESTERN ODISHA DISTRIEUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTYS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

Note 14
Cash and bank balances

Accounting policy
14.1 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand and shart-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant

risk of changes in value, Cash and cash equivalents Include balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage. For the purpose of the Statement of Cash
Ftows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at bank, cash / cheques on hand and short-term deposits, as defined above,

As at As at
March 21, 2024 March 31, 2023
% in Crore Z in Crore
14.2 Cash and cash equivalents
(At amortised cost)
(a) Balances with banks - in current accounts 168.81 118.09
(b} Deposits with banks eriginal maturity of less than 3 months 213.91 621,56
(c) Cash an hand 5.77 5.87
(d) Cheques on hand 0.51 0.18
Total cash and cash equivalents 389.00 745.70
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Z in Crore ¥ in Crore
14.3 Bank balances other than 14.2 above*
{At amortised cost}
{iy Deposits with banks with original maturity more than 3 menths upto 12 months 1,448,887 1,187.06
{ii) Other earmarked balances 427.38 498.07
1,876.25 1,685.13
*Earmarked balances against consumer security deposit, government grants and consumer contribution for work under progress.
The Company has pledged a part of its short term deposits to fulfill collateral requirements. Refer note 19 for further detalls.
i4.4 Change in Liabtlities arising from financing activities and non-cash financing and investing activities
Z in Crore
Particulars As at April 1, Cash Flows Non-cash As at March 31, 2024
2023 Proceeds Payment Adjustments*
Security deposits frarm electricity cansumers 1,0756.4% 125,94 - - 1,206.43
onsumers’ contribution for warks under progress 51.03 37.78 - (8.54) 80.27
Subsidies towards cost of capital asset 424.96 250.25 - (98,43} 576.78
Non Current borrowings 223.7 200.02 {16.98) (16,98} 389.84
Current borrawings 16.98 - (14.99) 16,98 18.97
Total 1,793.24 617.99 {31.97) {106.97} 2,272.29

*Includes non-cash transactions fike amortisatien of upfront fees on term loan, amortisation of consumer deposit work/grant, interest payable on govt.arants,

Particulars As at April 1, Cash Flows Non-cash As at March 3%, 2023
2022 Proceeds Payment Adjustments*
Security depasits from electricity consumers 904,02 172.47 ~ - 1,076.49
Consumers' contribution for werks under progress 10.00 = - 41.03 51.03
Subsidies towards cost of capital asset 222.9% 202,01 - - 424,96
Non Current bareowings 50.00 180,76 - (16.98) 223.78
Current borrowings 130.24 - (130.24) 16.98 16,08
Total 1,317.21 565.24 {138.24) 41.03 1,793.24

*includes non-cash transactions like amartisation of upfront fees on term loan, amortisation of consumer deposit worlk/grant, interest payable on govt.grants.

Note 15 As at As at
Other financial assets - currant March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Unsecured and considered good, unless atherwise stated, at amortised cost) % in Crore Z in Crore
{a} Interest accrued but not due on short term deposit with banks 30.47 18.65
(b} Receivable from related parties (Refer note 41) 1.06 1.27
(¢) Other Receivables# 14.22 0.31
(d} Staff Advance 2.00 2.51
47.75 23.24

#0Other recelvables includes payments and receivables from collection agencles, receivable from OPTCL, ete,

Note 16 As at As at

Other current assets March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

{Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated) T in Crore % in Crore
(@) CENVAT/ GST credit Receivable 0.10 Q.01
(k) Prepaid Expenses 332 2.83
{c} Others Advance (Supplier Advances, etc.} 1.42 5.48

4.84 8.32




TP WESTERN DDISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE year ENDED MARCH 31,2024

Nate 7
Share capikal

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
No of Shares € in Crore No of Shares T in Crore
Authorised Share Capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 1,00,00,00,000 1,000.00 1,00,00,00,000 1,000.00
1,00,00,00,000 1,000.00 1,ﬂﬂ,ﬂﬂlﬂﬂ,ﬂﬂﬂ 1,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up Share Capital
Equlty shares of T :0/- each {fuliy paid up) 64,79,81,100 E47.58 48,62 00,000 480.20
Total issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 64.79,81,100 647,88 48,02,00,000 480,20
2. Reconciliation of shares owtstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year;
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 21,2023
No af Shares ¥ in Crare No of Shares T in Crore
Equity shares
AL the beginning of the year 48,02,00,000 480.20 35,99,34,600 358,53
Issued durlng tha year 16,77,81,100 1E7.78 12,02,65,400 126.27
Outstanding at the end of the year 64,79,81,100 647.88 48,02,00,000 480.20

b. Rights, preference and restrictions attached to shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends
and the repayment of capital:
Equity Shares
The Company has only cne class of equity shares having a par value of 710 per share. Each holder of aquity shares |5 entitled to one vote per share held. The share
holders are entitled to dlvidend dedered on proportionate basis. On liguidstion of the Company, the equity shareholders are eligifle to recelva remaining assets of
the Company after distribution of alt preferential amounts in proportion to their sharehelding.

¢ Details of share helders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity shares of € 10 each fully paid As at March 31,2024 As at March 21, 2023
Name of the Sharehelder No of Sharas % holding Mo of Shares %e holding
A, Tha Tata Power Company Ltd (Holding company) 33,04,76,361 S1% 24,49,02,000 51%
B. GRIDCO Lid {Company having stonlficant Influence) 31,75,10,732 49% 23,52,98,000 49%
Total 64,789,881 100 48,02,00,000

d. Aggragate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant te contract wi being In cash.

Tha Company has allotted 17,05,10,739 equity shares (incduding 8,22,12,73% equity shares allotted during the year) till March 31, 2024 (March 3t, 2023:
5,89,30,046) as fully pald for considerations received in form of Distributicn Assets, pursuant to shareholder's agresment and the Government of Odisha
notifications. The value of distribution assets have been determined by an independert valuer,

& Shareholding of promoters
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters ag at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

No of Shares Chenge no of Sharas o5 of %% Change
Promoter As at April 1,2023 During the year As gt March 31,2024 Total Shares During the year
A. The Tata Power Company Ltd 24,49,02,000 8,55,68,361 33,04,76,361 51.00% 0.00%
B. GRIDCO Ltd 23,52,98,000 8,22,12,739 31,75,10,739 4%.00% 0.00%
Total 48,02,00,000 16,77,81,100 64,79,81,100 100.00% 0.00%

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 20823 is as follows:

Bo of Shares Change No of Shares %% of % Change
Promoter As st April 1,2022 During the year Ag at March 31,2023 Total Shares During the year
A. The Tata Power Company Ltd 18,35,65,5646 6,13,35,354 24,49,02,000 51, 00%: C,00%
B. GRIDCO itd 17.,63,67,954 5,89,30,046 23,52,98,000 49.00% C.00%
Total 35,99,34 500 12,02,65,400 4R8,02,00,000 100.00% 0.06%

As 8t

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

TinCrore T in Crore

Note 18
Other aquity
1B.1 Retained earnings

(3} Balance at the beginning of the year 152,80 62,72
{b) ProRE far the year 74.78 $1.08

{c} Other Comprehensive Income for the year = =
(d) Balarwe at the end of the year 228.58 153.80

Nature and purpose of reservas:

Retainad earnings
Retained esrnings are the profits/{lasses) that the Company has eamed [ Incurred Yl date, less any transfers {c general reserve, dividends or ather distributions pafd
shareholders, Retained earnings include re-measurements loss/{gain) ¢n defined benefit plans, net of taxes that wili nat be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Note 18

Non-current Borrowings As at As at

(At amortisad cost) March 31, March 31,2023

Crore Z 1n Crore

19,1 Securad
Term Loans from Banks
{a) HDFC Bank 206,52 223.78
(b) Canars Bank 155.83 -

406,82 223.78
Less : Current maturities of long-term debt 16.98 16,98
Total mon-turrent berrowings 389.84 206.80
18.2 The Company has net defaulted on any loans payable, The Company hes utflized the loan for the sanctioned pupose.
19.3  Term Loans from HOFC Bapk are repayable over 53 equal quarterly instalments and repayment has started from April, 2023,
Term Loans frerm Canara Bank Limited are repayable over 52 equal quarterly instatments and repayment will start from November, 2025,

15.4 The rete of interest for term loan from HDFC s 8t 8.40% [ink to 1 month T Bill (i.e. presendy st 2,66% (March 31, 2023: 3,20%)). For Canare Bank, it [s 3 Months
MCLR+ 0.00% i.e. presently at B,65%.

19.5 Term loans from HGFC are secured against 1st parf passu charge on all the entre movable and immovable fixed assets of the Company, both present and Ruture;
excuding assets transferred to the Company from WESCO as per terms of the vesting erder, 2nd pari passu chargs on entire current assets, both present and future
exduding rastricted assets as per vesting order. In addiion - SBI has also first charge on all the bank accounts of the Company including Dabt Service Reserve Account
(DSRA}.

18.6 Tenn Loans from Canara Bank secured against 1st paripassu charge (with other TL lenders) over entire movable B immovable fixed assets of the company, both present
and future, exduding assets wansferred to the company from WESCO vide vesting order of DERC & as per the conditions stipulated in vesting order, 2nd paripassu
<harges (with other TL lenders) over entire current assets of the company, both present and future, excluding regulstory deposits & as per the conditions stipulated in
westing erder. "Regulatory deposits” incudes consumer security deposits and government depesits received in the form of grant, subsidy, relief fund, etc,

19,7 Term Leans from HDFC and Canara Bank contain certain debt covenants relating to limitation on Indebtedness, Total Debt to ERIDTA, interest coverage ratio, FACR and

deht service caverage ratio, The Company has satisfled all the debt covenants presgibed in the terms of bank loan.




TF WESTERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

Note 20

Provisions

20.01

Accounting Policy

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past evant, It Is probable that the Company will be required to settie the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the considerstion required to settle the
present obligation at the end ©of the reporting year, taking inta accaunt the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to sattle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of maney is material},

Present obligations arising under onerous confracts are recognised and measured as provisions with charge to the statement of profit and loss. An onerous contract is considered to
exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavaidable costs of meeting the pbligations under the contract will exceed the economic benefits expected to be received
from the centract,

fin ontribution
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are racognized as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the benefit, If the contribution
pavable to the scheme for service recelved on or before the balance sheet date exceetls the cantribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized recognised as &
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. IF the contribution already pald exceeds the centribution due for services recsived on or before the belance sheet date, then
excess is recognised recognised as an ssset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, & reduction In future payment or & cash refund.

Defined benefits plans

‘The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is cetermined using the projected unlt credit method. Remessurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the asset celling, excluding amaunts inciuded in net interest on the net defined benefit fiability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net definad benefit liabfity), are recognised immediately in the belance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to ratsined earnings through OCI in the year in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to proflt or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the earller of:
- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
- The date that the Company recognises related restructuting costs

Nat Interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benafit obligation
as an expanse in the statement of profit and loss:

- Sarvice costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, pains and losses on curtaliments and nen-routine setilemants; and

- Met interest expensa or income.

Other current and other non-current emplovee benefits

A Hability is recognised for current benefits accruing to employeas in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the year In which the relatad service s rendered at
the undiscounted amount of the benafits expected to be paid in exchange for that service. Liabilities recognised In respect of current amployee banefits are meassured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

The cost of providing other tang-term employee benefits, including eamed leave, sick leave and other benefits, is determined using the prajected unlt credit method, The relatec
expenses Including remeasurement gains and losses are recagnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company cperates a scheme for Compensated sbsences wherelin the employee s entitled to avall leave benefits as par the policy of the Company. Tha leave benefits are linked
to the salary of the employee &nd the employee is entitied to either avall paid leave or encash unutilised leave either during employment or on retirement. The liability for
campensated absences s provided an the basis of an actuarial valuation done by an Independent actuary at the reporting year end. The Company treats accumulated Jeave expected
to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as lang-term employee banafit far measurement purposes. Remeasurernent / Actuarial gains and losses are recognised Immediately in
the Statement of Prefit and Loss.

liab util
The terms of the Vesting Order as modifieg by the Carve Qut order provide that for entire liabllities toward pension, gratuity and compensated absences of employees retried before
the acquisition date and acquisition date liabilities of continuing employees on the acquisition date, the Company’s responsibility is limited onty to remiiting fixed amount requested
by the respective Trusts and tha same wili be allowed to be recovered from cansumers for disbursal to the beneficiaries covered under the Trusts, The Company has recagnised
amount payable o the Trusts for the current year for onward payment of the said llabilities are charged as an expense as they fall due,

Post-acquisition date liabilities of employees whe were in sarvice employees on the acquisition date are accounted for either as defined benefit plan or other long term emplaoyee
benefit basis natura of tha banafit,
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20,02 Defined contribution plans

20.03

Erstwhile WESCO utility Employees

Provldent Fund Plan

The Company's contributions toward provident fund of the gligible emptaoyees is deposited under the Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1852, Tha provident
fund is operated by the regional provident fund commissioner. Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The Company does not have any further any further obligation under the plan.

Other than Ersiwhile WESCO utility Employees

Provident Fund Plan

The Company makes contributions toward provident fund of qualifying employees which is a defined contribution plan. The Company's contribution to the employees provident fund is
deposited under the Employees Provident Fund and Miscellanecus Provisions Act,1952 which is recognised by the income tax authorities and operated by the regional provident fund

commissioner. Under the scheme, the Company Is required te contribute a spetified parcentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the banefits, The Company
does not have any further obligation under the plan.

Employee State Insurance :-

The Company makes Employee State Insurance {'ESI') schemne contributions to defined contribution plans for eliginle employeas. Under the scheme, the Company is required to
contribute & specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits., The contributions as specified are pald to the Employee Stete Insurence Corparation ('ESICT) set under the
ESI Act 1548, The Company is generally liable for annual contributions, If the contribution payabie to the scheme for service recelved before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability. If the contributlon already paid exceeds the contribution due for services receivad before the
balance sheet data, than excess is recognised as an asset to the axtent that the pre-payment will Iead to a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

‘The Company has recognised a totzl of #16,14 crores [March 31, 2023 #14.35 crares) as contribution towards all the defined contribution plans in the statament of profit or loss.

befined Benefits plans

Erstwhile WESCO Employeas

i} Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit gretuity plan. The gratuity plan is primarily governed by the Odisha Civil Services (Pansion) Rules 1992, Employees who are in
continuous service for a yaar of five years are eligible for gratuity. The level of benefits provided depends on the mernbar's length of service and salary at the retirement
date. The gratuity plan is funded plen. The fund has the form of a trust and is governed by Trustess appeinted by the Company, The Trustees are respongible for the
administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy in accordance with the regulations. The funds are deployed in recognised insurer
managed funds in India.

i) Pension
The Company has & defined benefit pension plan. The pension plan is primarily governed by the Qdisha Civil Services (Penslon) Rules 1992. Employees who had joined
WESCO on or before December 31, 2004 are aligible for pension. The level of benefts provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at the retirement
date. The pension plan is funded ptan. The fund has the form of a trust and is governed by Trustees appointed by the Company. The Trustees are responsible for the

sdministration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy in accordance with the regulations. The funds are deployed in recegnised insurer
managed funds in Indla,

‘The terms of the vesting order as madified by the Carve Out order provide that for entire liabilities toward pension, gratuity and leave enceshment of employeas retried before
the acquisition date and acguisition date [iabilities of continuing employees on the acquisition date, the Company’s respongibility is Imited only to remitting fixed amount
requested by the respective Trusts and the same will be allowad to be recavered from consumers for disbursal to the beneficiaties covered under the Trusts, Based on specific
clarifications provided in the carve out and the vesting order, the Company has recegnised amount payable to the Trusts for the current year for onward payment of the said
liabilities in the statement of profit and loss as they fall due.

Post-acquisition date liabilities of employees who were In service employaees on the acquisition date are accounted for either as defined benafit plan or ather long term empiayee
benefit basis natura of the benefit.

Refer note 35 for further detalls.

Other than Erstwhile WESCO Employees (Unfunded)

i} Gratulty
The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employses. The benefit payabte Is caleulated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The benefit vests upon
completion of five years of continuaus service end once vested it is payable te employees on retirement or on termination of employment. The gratuity benefits payable to
the employees are based an the employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving. The employees do not contribute towards this plan and the full cost of
providing these benefits are met by the Company, [n case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable irrespactive of vesting.

ii} Pension
The Company has a defined benefit pension granting a pre-determined sum as pension after completing vesting year.

ili} Post Employment Medical Benefit
The tompany provides certaln post-employment health care benefits to superannuated employees at some of Its locations, In terms of the plan, the retired employees can
avall frae madical check-up and medicines at companies’ facilities. The benefit is treated as defined benefit pan.

iv) Ex-Gratia Death Benefits

The Campany has a defined benefit plan granting ex-gratia payment in case of death during service. The benefit consists of & pre-determined lump sum ameunt aleng with
a sum determinad based on last drawn basic salary per month and the length of service.

¥} Retirement Gift
The Company has a defined benefit plan granting a pre-determined sum as retirement: gift on superannuation of an employes.
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20.04
(a)

(b}

(&

20.05

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Provisio r nefi % in Crore Tin Crore
Gratulty (Refer Note 20.07 (a), (b). (¢} & (d)) 44.96 27.61
Pensian fund (Refer Note 20.07 (a), {b)}, {¢} & (d)} 220.10 152.53
Leave Encashment 40.32 25.04
Post Retirement Madical Benefit (PRMB} {Refer Note 20.07 (a), (b)} 6,34 6.43
Other Defined Benatit Plan {Refer Note 20.67 (a) & (b)) 10,87 7,09
322.59 218,70
Sl

Lurrent
Gratulty (Refer Note 20.07 (a}, (b), (c) & (d}) 0,42 0.26
Pension Tund (Refer Note 20.97 {a}, (b), (c) & (d)} 0.00 -
Leave Encashment 1.70 1.28
Post Retirement Madical Benefit (PRMB) (Refer Note 20.07 (a) & (b)} - -
Other Defined Benefit Plan (Refer Note 20.07 (a) & (b)) 0.33 0.54

2,45 2,08
Other provisions
Provisien for Claims & Cempensation 15.45 17.88

15.45 17.88

17.90 19.86
Pre-ac: ] it f employe ransferred from erstwhile WES:! ity

The Company has acquired the electricity distribution business of WESCO with effect from January 1, 2021, As a part of Business transfer, all the employees of the undertaking were
transferred to the Company effective January 1, 2021 on a continuity of service conditions. Previously retired employees as well as continuing employees of WESCO transferred to
the Company are entitled to pension and/ or gratuity plan which are managed by separate trusts who are responsible for the disbursement of pension and gratuity to the
beneficiaries. Liabilities of these trusts determinad on an actuarial basis exceed assets svailable with them. Based on terms af the Vesting Order as modified by the Carve Out Order,
these liabilties are treated in two parts

Liabifities for past employ and isition date liabillties of existing employeas

The Yesting Crder as modified by the Carve Qut order states that for entire liabilities toward penslan, gratulty and leave encashment of past employess and acquisition date [labillties
of existing employees, the Company’s respensibility is limited only to remitting fixed amount requestad by the respactive Trusts and recovered by it fram congumers &3 @ part of ARR
for disbursal to the beneficiaries covered under the Trusts. Given below are details of Trusts’ totai sccrued liabilities in respect of these of fgatiens not transferrec to the Company at

this stage.
March 31,2024
Z in Crare
[Particular Peansion Gratuity Leave
Total liability of all employees 1,425.16 50.66 — 140.33
Total jiablllties In respect of obligation not transferred to the company N
Tatal liabillty of past employees 997.83 - -
Acquisitian date liabilities of exlsting employeas 207.24 21.97 102.96
I'_l'o_izl 1,205,07 21.97 102.96
March 31,2023
T i Crore
[Particuiar [Fension Gratuity Leave
Total liability of all employeas 1,332.69 45,13 124.86 |
Total llabilides in respect of obligation not transferred to the company
Total liabllity of past employees 963,45 - -
Acquisiticn date llabltities of existing employees 216.70 26.79 102.96
Total 1,180.15 26.79 102.96

As per the Vesting and Carve Out Ordey, total amount paid/ payable is given below for the current year towards the liabilities In respect of cbligation not transferred 1o the Company
& have been racognised as expense in the statement of profit and loss and tewards Babilities In respect of abligation transferred to the Cormpany & have been recognised in Hability:

March 31,2024

Z in Crore
Particulars Pension Gratuity ;Leave
Amount paid/payable towards liabilities in respect of obligation not 110.63 4.81 -
transferred to the Company - :
Amount paid/payable towards liabiliftes in respect of cbligation Sansferred to
the Company 6,66 3.30 6.10
Total 117,39 8.11 6.10

March 21,2023

Z in Crora
Particulars IPension Gratuity Leave
Amount paid/payable towards liabilities In respect of obligaticn not 24.09
transferred to the Company : - -
Amount pald/payable towards liabilities in respect of obligation transferred to 16.69 10.97
the Company i} - -
Total 100.78 10.83 L3

Post acquisition date liabllltfes of existing employees ::
The Company has assessed that post transfer of business, these plans as defined benefit plans and has accordingly recognized incremental liabllity in respect of existing employees
on the acquisition date in the financial statements, Given below are necessary disclosures in raspact of these llabllities, along with other defined benefits plan of the Company.
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20.06 Risk assotiated with the plan provisions are actuarial risk. These risk are interast rate risk, demographic risk and salary escalation risk.
Interest risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

20.07

Longavity ris
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calulated by reference to the best astimate of the mortality of pian participants both during and after their employment. An

increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability,

Salary Escalation risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants
will Increase tha plan’s liability.

The following tables set out the funded status of gratuity plan and amount recognised in the Cempany's financial statements as at March 31, 2023.The valuation has been carried cut
using the * Project Unit Credit Method " as per Ind AS 12 " Employee Benefits™ to determine the present value of defined benefit ebligations and related currant service cost.

#. Present Value of obligations

LN

transferred to the Company) {Refer note 20.04)

% in Crore
Gratuity (Un Other Pefined Gratuity (Funded) Pension {Funded}
Particulars Funded} Benefit
{Unfunded*+*}
3. Present Value of oblioations as at April 1,2022 as per Actuarial 8,45 3.91 88.92 360.58|
Valuation {including obligetion not transferred to the Campany) (Refer
note 20.04)
k. Interest Cost 0.59 0.27 5.81 25.01
c. Current Service Cost 1.02 0.50 3.85 8.87
d. Past Service Cost - 0.01 = 0.00)
2. Acquisition (Credit)/Cost - - - =
f. Actuarial loss / {gain)-Demographic - - - -
. Actuarial loss / (gain)-Financial {0.19) (0.10) (1.81) {11.52)
h, Actuarial loss / {gain)-Experience 0.01 0.17 5.62 53.9
i, Banefits Paid {D.35) (0.35) {14.21) (16.69)
i Present value of obligation as at March 31,2023 (including obBgation 89.52 4.42 §7.98 420,23
net transferred to the Company) (Refer note 20.04)
a. Present value of obligations as at April 1, 2023 as per Actuarial 9.52 4.42 §7.28 420.23
Valuation {including obligatien not transfarred te the Company) (Refer
note 17.04)
k. Interest Cost 0,70 &4.31 6.04 30.01
l. Current Service Cost 1.80 8.86 3.63 7.80
m. Past Service Cost - - = =
. Acquisition (Cradit)/Cost - = ] P
9. Actuarial loss / {gain)-Demographic - 0.09 {1.39) 5.66
B Actuzrial loss / {gain)-Financisl 0.46 G.20 3.27 19.26
q. Actuarial loss f {gain)-Experiance 4.21 0.30 5.33 15.42
v, Benefits Paid 0.00 {D.33) (10.43) {18.13}
S, Prasent value of obligation at March 31,2024 (inciuding obligatien not 16.59 5.86 84,44 480,25
transferrad to the Company) {Refer nate 20.04)
Fair value of plan assets
T in Crore
Gratuity {(Un Other Defined Gratuity {Funded) Pension (Funded)
Particulars Fundad) Benefit
{Unfunded **}
a. Fair vaiue of plan asset as at April 1, 2022 (including plan assats not - 0.70 43.03 48.10
transferred to the Company) (Refer nate 18.04)
a. Acquisition {CredIt)/Cost - - = =
= Estimated retumn on plan asset - 0.02 3.15 2.89
d. Employer contribution - 0.35 18,92 16.68
2. Benefits Paid - {0.63) {14.27) {18.69)
£, Excess of actual over estimated return - - - -
Q. Others - - - ~
h. Fair value of plan asset as at March 31,2023 (including plan assets - 0.45 42,84 50.95%
not transferred to the Company) (Rafer note 20.04)
3. |Fair value of plan asset as at April 1, 2023 (including plan assets not - 0.45 42.84 50.99
transferred to the Company) {Refer nota 17.04)
8 Acquisition {Credit)/Cost - = = =
i Estimated retum on plan asset - 0.04 3.25 3.92
K, Employer contribution - 0.60 B.1D 16.13
[ |Benafits Paid - (0.33) {10.43) (18,13}
m. |Excess of actual over astimated return - - = =
n. Others - - = =
o, Fair value of plan asset at March 21,2024 {ircluding plan assets not - 0.76 43.76 52.91
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[«

B

Armnount ta be recognized in the balance sheet

Z in Crore
Gratuity (Un Other Defined Gratuity (Funded) Pension {(Funded)
Particulars Funded} Benefit
{Unfunded**)}
1. Present Value of ohligations as at March 31,2023 as per Actuarial 9.52 4,42 87.08 420,23
Valuation (inciuding obligation not transferred to the Company)
2. Fair value of Assets at the end of the year (including plan assets not - 0.45 42.84 50.29
transfetred to the Company)
3. Net lizbliity (before reducing liabtlity not transferred to Company) 9.52 3.87 45.14 369.24
4. Liability not transferred to the Company as per vesting order - - {28,79) (216.71)
5. Net current Liability recognized in balance sheet as at March 31,2023 0.26 g.21 = =
&. Net non current Liability recognized in balance sheet as at March 31,2023 9.26 3.76 18.35 152,53
1, Present Value of obfigatiens as at March 21,2024 as per Actuarial 16.69 5.86 94,44 480.25
Valuation {including abligation not transferred to the Company)
2. Fair value of Assets at the end of the year (including plan assets not = 8.76 43.76 52.91
transferred to the Campany)
3. Net liabllity (before reducing liability not transferred to Company) 16.69 5.10 50.67 427.34
4. Liability not transferred to the Company as per vesting order - = {21.98) {207.24)
5. Net current Liability recognized in batance sheet as at March 31,2024 042 0.27 - -
€, Net nen current Liability recognized in balance sheet as at March 31,2024 16.27 4.82 28,69 220.10
Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss
¥ in Crote

For the year ended March 31,2024

Particulars Gratulty (Un Other Defined Gratuity {(Funded} Pension (Funded)
Funded) Benefit
(Unfunded *¥}
1. Current Senvice Cost 1.80 D.B& 2.63 7.80
Current, interest cost an OP Laib
2. Past Service Cost B o - -
Interst Costs on Opening Balance Not Transafered

3. Interest Cost 0.70 0.31 6.09 30.01
4, Expacted return on Plan Assets = (0.04) (3.04) {3.65)
5. Immediate Recegnition of [Gains)/ Lossas - Other Long Term Benefits - 0.23 = =
6. Net Actuarial (Galn}/Loss recognized in the year - - S -
7. Others {payment to trust) - - 4,81 110.63
4, Expensas recognized in statement of Profit & Loss 2.49 1.35 11.44 144.80

T in Crore

For the year ended March 31,2023
Particulars Gratuity (Un Other Pefined Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Funded)
Funded) Benefit
{Unfunded **}

1. Current Service Cost 1.02 0.50 3,85 8.87
2. Past Service Cost = 0.01 - -
3. Interest Cost 0.59 0.25 5.81 25.01
4., Expected return on Flan Assels = (0.02) {3.15) {3.42)
5, iImmedlate Racognition of (Gains)/ Losses - Other Long Term Benefits - D.29 - -
6. Net Actuarial (Gain)fLoss recognized in the year - - - =
7. Others {payment to trust) = = 34.09
8. Expenses recognized in statement of Profit & Loss 1.61 1.03 6.50 114.55
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e. Amount recognized in other comprehensive Income (remeasurements)

o= ¥ in Crore
For the year ended March 31,2024
particulars Gratuity (Un Other Defined Gratuity {Funded) Pension (Funded)
Funded) Benefit
(Unfunded™**)
Actuarial {gains)/losses arising from: -
- CCI related te OP liakility not transferred
- changes in demagraphic assumptions - Q.08 {i.39) 5.66
- charges in financial assumptions 0.46 G.20 3.27 19.26
- Return on plan asseis 2 ¢.01 (0.20) (0.27)
- experience adjustments 4.21 .30 5.33 15.42
Total 4.67 0.60 7.01 40.06
¥ in Crore
for the year ended March 31,2023
. Gratuity {(Un Cther Defined Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Funded)
Rarticulars Funded) Benefit
{Unfunded*)
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from:
- changes in demographic assumptions - = = -
- changes in financial assumptions {0.19) 0.10 {1.81) {11.52)
- Retumn on plan assets = - = 0.52
- experience adjustments 0.01 0.17 o 53.99
Total (0.18) 0.27 3.46 42,99 |
f. Principal assumptions
As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Particulars —
Gratuity Gratulty (funded) Gratuity Gratuity (funded)
(Unfunded} (tinfunded)}
1. Discount rate 7.00% 7.00% 7.30% 7.30%
2, Salary escalation 7.00% 6.00% 7.00% 6.00%

Indlan Assured Lives |100 %% Indian |[Indlan Assured Lives |100 % Indian Assured
’ Mortality {2006-0B) [Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ut  |Lives Mortality {2312 ~14)
3. Mortality rate Uit Mortality (2012 -14)

g. Category wise plan assets
As at As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Gratuity (Funded) | Pension {Funded} Gratulty {Funded} Pension (Funded)
Cash & Cash Equivalents 5.83% 2.59% 7.87% 2.94%
State Government Securities 42.32% 39.10% 41.86% 43.27%
Government of Indla Assets 4.56% 8.12% 14.47% 6.44%
Corporate Bonds 46.32% 38.58% 32.41% 33.05%
Other 0.97% 11.59% 3.39% 14,30%
Total 100,00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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h, Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligatior are discount rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity anzlyses below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year, while holding ai other assumptions constant.

% in Crore

As at

March 31, 2024

obligation

Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit liability Gratuity Other Defined Gratuity {(Funded) Pansion (Funded)
{unfunded) Benefit
{Unfunded*+)

Impact on discount rate for 0.5% decrease in defined beneflt obligation 0.82 0.37 5.83 35.06
Impact on discount rate for 0.5% increase in defined benefit obligation (0.76) (0.33) (5.36) (31.43)
Impact on salary escalatien rate for 0.5% decrease in defined benefit {0.76) (0.05) (3.58) (i2.21)
obligation
Impact on salary escalation rate for 0.5% increase in defined benefit 0.82 0.05 3.63 12.98
obligation

% in Crore

As at
March 31, 2023
Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit liability Gratuity Other Defined Gratuity (Funded) Pension {(Funded)
{Unfunded) Banefit
{Unfunded*+*)

Impact on discount rate for 0.5% decrease in defined benefit obligation 0.50 0.24 4.91 28.78
Impact on discount rate for 0.5% increase in defined benefit obligation (0.468) (0.21) (4.52) {25.72)
Impact on salary escalation rate for 0.5% decrease in defined banefit (0.47) (0.03) (3.12) {10.45)
abligation
Impact on salary escalation rate for 0.5% increase in defined benefit 0.50 0.03 3,22 11.12

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change In assumpticns
wauld occur in isclation of one anather as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the prasent value of the defined benefit obligation has bean calculated using the prajected unit credit method at
the end of the reporting vear, which Is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit abligaticn liability recognized in the balance sheet,

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitlvity analysis from previous year.

The weighted average duration of the unfunded gratuity plan is 10 year

i» Effect of Plan on Company's future cash flows

T in Crore
As at
March 21, 2024
Expected Future cashflows Gratalty Other Defined Gratuity (Funded)* Penslon (Funded)*
{Unfunded) Benefit
(Unfunded**)
March 33, 2025 0.44 0.57 4,77 25.19
March 3%, 2026 0.83 0.59 5.29 26.66
March 3%, 2027 1.27 0.83 4,33 23.65,
March 3%, 2028 1.41 0.64 5,52 21.78
March 31, 2029 2.61 0.68 4,00 22.97
Mareh 31, 2030 to March 31, 2034 14,07 3.87 25.08 106.28
% in Crora
As at
March 31, 2023
Expected Future cashflows Gratuity Other Defined Gratuity (Funded)* Pension (Funded)*
(Unfunded } Benefit
{Unfunded**)
March 31, 2024 0.27 0,51 6.95 21.47
March 31, 2025 0.28 Q.51 7.85 22,90
March 31, 2026 0.62 4.53 5.84 19.83
March 31, 2027 0.87 Q.56 4.92 17.92
March 31, 2028 0.95 Q.56 5.8% 19,08
March 31, 2029 to March 31, 2033 10.02 3.30 26.32 86.18

*including payment fer liabilities not transferred to the Company (refer note 20.05)
*#* including rehabilitation schame (funded plan) pertaining to legacy employees
0.00 represents amount below the rounding off nerm adopted by the Company
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As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Z in Crore % in Crore
Mote 21
Capital Grant and Consumer contribution towards capital assets-Non Current (At Cost less amortisation)
Consumer Contribution Towards Cost of Capital Assets 1,079.94 966,35
Deferred Government Grants towards cost of capital asset 423.75 351.%2
Total Capital Grant and Consumer contribution towards capital assets 1,503.69 1,318.27
o Al ontribution Towards Capital Assets
Balance at the beginning of the year 966.35 902.40
Add: Additions during the year 171.91 113.49
Less: Deletion during the year (net} 0.40 -
Less: Release to the Statement of Profit & Loss (Refer Note 28) 57.93 49,53
Balance at the end of the year 1,07%.94 966.35

Note:- Consumer Contributions towards capital assets is amortised to the statement of profit and foss to match with depreciation charged on assets created out of
such contributlon.

Movement in Deferred Government Grants towards cost of capital asset

Balance at the beginning of the year 351.82 338.79
Add: Additions during the year 93.47 31.32
Less: Releage to the Statement of Profit & Loss {Refer Note 23) 21.64 1B.19
Balance at the end of the year 423.75 351.92

Note:- Government Grant have been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. There are no unfuifilled condition or contingencies
attached to the grant.

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
¥ in Crore ¥ in Crore
Note 22

Other Non current liabilities
Deposlt from supplier/vendor B.82 8,93
Consumers' contribution for work under progress B0.27 51.03
Subsidies towards cost of capital asset {Refer note helow) 576.77 424.96
665.86 484,92

Note; As part of business combination, certain grants/ subsidies have been transferred to the Company which can be wsed only in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the concemned scheme. Pending clarity on the terms and conditiens of the Scheme, the Company bas not used and continues to reflect grant/ subsidy as liability.

Note 23
Short-term borrowings
{At amortised cost) As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Z In Crore % in Crore
23,1 Secured
From Banks
{a} Cash credit - repayable on demand 1.99 -
23.2 Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings
(b) Term Loans from Bank
HDFC Bank 16.98 16.98
Total short-term borrowings i8.97 16.28

Note:1.Secured credit facilities

The Company has availed secured credit facilities of 2475 crore (March 31, 2023: 475 crore) from SBI Bank which includes fund based limit of 200 crore (March
31, 2023: 200 crore) at an interest rate for applicable tenor MCLR per annum (March, 31, 2023: applicable tenor MCER per annum) &nd Non-fund based limit of
2275 crore (March 31, 2023: 275 crore) at a commission rate of 0,.35% per annum (March 31, 2023: 0.40% per annumj).

The Company has availed secured credit facilities of T475 crore (March 31, 2023: ¥475 crore) from HDFC Bank which includes fund based Hmit of ¥200 crore
{March 31, 2023: ¥200 crore) at an interest rate for applicable tenor MCLR per annum (March 31, 2023: applicable tenor MCLR per annum) and Non-fund based
fimit: of ¥275 crore (March 31, 2023: ¥275 crare) at a commissian rate of 0.35% per anrum {March 31, 2023: 0.35% per annum).

These fadilities are secured against first pari passu charge an all the current assets {other than restricted as per vesting order, induding cansumer security deposits
and Government deposits recelved in the form of grant, subsidy, relief fund etc) both present and future with other lenders of the Company under Multiple Banking
Arrangement {MBA). Cellateral security- Second parl passu charge on entire movable/immovable fixed assets of the Corpany, excluding assets transferred to the
Company from Wesce as per terms of the vesting order, with other lenders of the Company under MBA.

The Camparny has avalled secured overdraft limits of ¥215 crore (March 31, 2023: #215 crore) from Union Bank of India at applicable Weighted Average Fixed
Deposit Rate Plus 0.50% margin per annum {March 31, 2023: applicable Weighted Average Fixed Deposit Rate Plus 0.25% margin per annum) .

Note:2. Current borrowings secured against current assets
The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financlal Institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts. The
Company has not usad any of the borrowings from banks apart for the purpose for which it was taken,
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Note 24

Trade payables (at amortised cost)
(i) Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises ("MSE"} (Refer note 24.2 below)

{ii} Outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

24.1
24,2

24.3

Refer note 41 for related party disclosure.

As at As at
March 2%, 2024 March 31,2023
% in Crore % in Crare

46.96 44.14
898.49 797.12
045.45 841.26

Post acquisition the company has started process of identifying micro and small enterprises separately, Micro and small enterprises under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Bevelapment Act, 2006 have been determined based on the infarmation available with the Company and the required disclosures are given

below:
_ As at As at March 31,
Particulars March 31,2024 2023
% in Crore 2 in Crore
(g) Principal amount™ 140.65 44,14
(B) Intersst dus = =
{c) The amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium - -
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amounts of the
payment made to the supplier beyend the appeinted day during each accounting year,
(d) The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment = =
(which has been paid but beyond the appointed day durlng the year} but without
adding the interest specified under the Micre, Small and Medlum Enterprises
Development Act, 2006
{e) The amount of interest accrued = =
(fy The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding years, until - -
such date when the interest dues as sbove are actually paid to the small enterprise
Total 140.69 44.14
*It Incudes amount payable In the nature of capital crediters as disclosed under note 25 - Other financial lkability
Trade Payables Ageing schedule as at March 31,2024
¥ crore
Particulars Cuistanding for following years from due date of payment # Total
Less
Not due* than 6 & Months - 1-2 Years | 2-2 years | More than 3 years
1 Year
Manths
(i) Undisputed Trade Payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises 13.36 21.47 2.47 2.60 0.70 6.37 46.96
b} Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - 833.78 22,59 7.00 0.19 34.93 B898.49
(ii) Disputed Trade Payable
a) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - = = = = =
b} Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - & 5 5 - -
# Where due date of payment is not available date of transaction has been considered
Trade Payables Ageing schedule as at March 31,2023 % crore
Particulars Qutistanding for following years from due date of payment # Total
Less
Not due* than 6 BIManths’s 1-2 Years | 2-3 years | More than 2 years
1 Year
Months
{i) Undisputed Trade Payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises - 32.74 2.13 1.97 7.30 - 44.14
b} Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - 696.62 - 8.83 91.67 E 797.12

({ii} Disputed Trade Payable
a) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises
b} Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises

# Where due date of payment is not avallable date of transaction has been considered
*Includes provision for expenses, where invoices not received till the date of Balance Sheet,
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Note 25 As at As at
Other financial liabilities - current March 21, 2024 March 31,2023
{At amortised cost) ¥ in Crare T in Crore
(a) Payable to employees 40,10 26.68
(b) Security deposit from consumers (Refer note below} 1,206.43 1,076.49
{c) Deposit from others 2.83 2.34
(d) Outstanding for supply of capital material (Refer Note 24,2) 334.51 260.90
(e} Interest payable on consumer secutity depaosits 75.64 65,93
(f) Payable to residuary company 5.74 35.59
(g) Consumers' contrlbution for work under progress 44.60 52.21
(h} Government Grant Payable 5.59 5,60
{i) Interest payable on government grant fund 25.54 20.66
(i}  Other financial liakilities {(payable against Additional Serviceable Liabilities) 8.68 -
1,749.66 1,546.40

Mote: The security deposits from electricity censumers carry interest at 6.75% p.a. (March 31,2023 : §.75%) and is adjusted against power kill of the respective customers
as per tariff regulations, The amount is refundable on surrender of electricity connection by the consumer,

Nota 26
Other current liabllities As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Z in Crore % in Crore
(a) Statutory liabilities 84.20 82,69
(b} Advance from Customer 80.68 69.26

164.57 151.95
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Note 27

ory Deferrat A 11

Accounting Policy

The Company determines revenue gaps (i.e. surplus/shortfall in actual returns over returns entitfed) in respect of its regulated operations in sccordance
wlth the provisions of Ind AS 114 - 'Regulatory Deferral Accounts' read with the Guidance Note on Rate Regulated Activities issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Indle {ECAI) and based on the principles laid down under the relevant Tariff Regulations/Tariff Orders notified by the Electricity
Regulater and the actual or expected actions of the regulator under the applicable regulatory framewerk, Appropriate adjustments in respect of such
revenue gaps are made in the regulatory deferral account of the respective year for the amounts which are reasonably determinable and no significant
uncertainty exists in such determination.

These adjustments/zccruals representing revenue gaps are carried forward as Regulatory deferral accounts debit/credit balances (Regulatory
Assets/Reguiatory Liabilities) as the case may be in the financial statements, which would be recovered/refunded through future biling based en future
tariff' determination by the regulator in accardance with the eleciricity regulations.

The Company presents separata [ine itemns in the balance sheat for:
i. the total of 21l reguiatory defarral account debit balances ang relzted deferred tax balances; and
ii. the total of alf regulatory deferral account credit balances and related deferred tax balances.

A separate line &em s presented in the Statement of Profit and Lpss for the net movemnent in regulatory deferral account.

Rate Regulated Activities

{i) As per the Ind AS-114 'Regulatory Deferral Accounts’, the business of electricity distribution is a Rate Regulated activity wherein the Odisha Elactricity
Regulatory Commission (the “OERC' or , the ‘regulator’) determines Tariff to be charged from consumers based on prevailing regulations in place.

The Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms and Cenditicns for Determination of Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply Tariff) Regulations, 2014/
2022, are applicable to the company. These regulations require the OERS to determine tarlff in a manner wherein the Company €an recover its fixed and
variable tosts including assured rate of return on approved equity base, from its consumers. The Company determines the Revenue, Regulatory Assets
and Liabilities as per the terms and conditions specified in these Regulations and Vesting Order,

As per the vesting order, the ATAC loss trejectory which can be passed on to customers is fixed for the first ten years. Any gain/ loss arising due to lower/
higher ATRC losses vis-a-vis fixed trajectory belongs to the Company and is not passed on to the customer. The Company determines the amount of such
gain/ loss based on basis power purchase cost anly and treats all ether expenses including operation and maintenance expenses, employee cost, finance
cost and fax expense as per prevailing regulations and tariff orders while determiaing 'Regulatory Deferral Account Balance.

{ii) In terms of the applicable regulations, the Campany submits its Annual Revenue Requirements {ARR) before beginning of the year for approval of the
OERC. After close of financial statements for a year, the actual income and expense incurred by the Company are reviewed and approved by the OERC in
the form of True-up Qrder,

{iif} The balance of regulatory asset/lrabilities of distribution business at reporting date is as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Z crore % crore
Regulatory Deferral Account
Regulatory Usbilities (716.42) (1,227.00)
Net Regulatory Assets/{Llability) (716.42) (1,227.00)
{iv} Movement of Regulatory Assets/Liabilities of distribution business as per Rate Regulated Activities s as follows:
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
¥ crore % crore
Opening Regulatory Liabilities (net of Assets) (A) {1,227.00) [E34.64)
Ragulatory Income/(Expenses) during the year
(i} Power Purchase Cost (normative) net off rebate 5,756.75 5,164.51
{li) Other expenses as per the terms of Tariff Regulations including Return on Equity 1,380.77 1,187.75
(iif)  Available revenue including non tariff income etc* (6,679.63) {6,996.93)
(iv) Others {includes OCI-Refer Note 35, etc.) 52,11 46,42
(v) Allowance based on true up order G.57 5.89
Net mevement In regulatory deferrzl balances (i + ii + li+ W+ v} =(B) 510,57 (592.36)
Closing Regulatory Liabilities (net of Assets) (A-+B) « 1227

{v) True-up order
The Company determines revenue gaps (i.e. surplus/ shorifall in actual returns over returns eatitded) in respect of its regulated operstions in
accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 114 - ‘Regulatory Deferral Accounts’ read with the Guidance Note on Rate Regulated Activities Issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and based on the principles laid down under the relevant Tariff Regulations/Tariff Orders
notified by the OERC and the actual or expected actions of the regulator under the applicable regulatory framework.

The QERC (Terms and Conditions far Determination of Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply Tar#f) Regulations, 2022, regulations require the OERC to
determine tariff in a manner that the Company, subject to certain specific gains and [osses allowed to be retained under the Vesting Order, can
recover its fixed and variable costs including assured rate of return on approved equity base, frem its consumers, The Company determines the
Revenue, Regulatery Assats and Liabllities as per the terms and conditions specified In these Regulations. In terms of the regulations, the Company
submits its Annual Revenue Requirements {ARR)} before beginning of the year for approval of the CERC. After dose of financial statements for a
year, the actual income and expense incurred by the Company are reviewed and approved by the OERC in the form of True-yp Order,

During the current year, the Company has filed true ug petition for FY 2022-23 slong with ARR petition for FY 24-25 as per the regulations. After
going through due precess of tarif finalization, tha OERC has issued true up order up to FY 2022-23 and ARR for FY 2024-25. In the true up order,
the DERC has found that the licensees have incurred actual expenses in variznce to approved amegunt by the CERC pertaining FY 2021-22 and FY
2022-23,

The OERC has trued up revenue gap / surplus upto March 31, 2023, resulting in a lower revenue entitlement of ¥ 131.38 crores crore vis-a-vis the
amount arrived at using actual expensas incurred by the Company. The Management has filed a clarification letter with OERC for review of tha
above lower revenue entitlement and aiso seeking a clarification from them that true up of FY 2022-23 carried out i only provisional and has not
been finalised . The management believes that the Company will be able to justify additional expense to the OERC and claim in the next ARR filings.

Also, during the current year, the Company has incurred additicnal expenses under the folfowing heads as compared o ameunt approved by the
QERC for the firancial year 2023-24.

Administrative and General Expanses - ¥ 37,23 crores

The Company continues to treat above additional expenditures as pass threugh to the cansumer. The management believas that thare will not be
any adverse financizl implications.

*Based on the true up order upto March 31, 2023, Non-tariff lncome has been allowed excluding mater rant. Accordingly, the Company has retained
meter rent (net of depreciation, finance cost and other installation costs) excluding the meters installed under various Government schemes such as
IPDS etc. Instead of Non- tariff income.

The aggregate of such meter rent {net of depreciation) recognised during the year Is Rs. 57,49 crores (including Rs, 37.84 croves pertaining to
earlier years),
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Note 28
Revenue recegnition

Accounting policy

Revenue from contracks with customers is recognised when control of the goods ar services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Description of perfermance abligations are as follows:

281 Sale of power - Distribution
Revenue from the supply of power is recognised net of any cash rebates over time for each unit of electricity delivered 2t the pre-determined
rate as per the tariff order.

Revenue from power supply is accounted for on the basis of billings to consumers and includes unbilled revenues accrued up to the end of the
reporting year. Revenue from power supply Is recognised net of the applicable taxes which the Company collects from the customer on behalf
of the government/state authorities,

The Company, as per the prevalent Regulations {referrad =s "Tariff Regulations") for distribution business, is required to recover its Annual
Revenue Requirement (ARR) comprising of expenditure on account of power purchase costs, operations and maintenance expenses, financing
cost, as per the said Tariff Regulations and an assured return on equity . As per the szid Tanff Regulations, the Company determines the ARR
and any excess/shortfall in recovery of ARR during the year is accounted for in "Regulatory Deferral Aczount Balance”,

Revenue in respect of Invoice raised for dishonest abstraction of power is recognizad when the certainty of its coltection is prebable i.e.
generzfly as and when recovered,

28.2 Contribution for capital works
Censumer's contribution towards property, plant and equipment which require an obligation to provide electricity connectivity to the consumers
is treated as capital receipt and credited in other liabllities under the head 'consumer's deposit for work' until transferred to a separate account
on commissioning of the assets. An armoeunt equivalent to the depraciation charge for the year on such assets is appropriated from this account
as income te the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

% in Crore Z in Crore
28.2 Revenue fram aperations
28.3.1 Revenue from saie of power

{a) Sale of power as per tariff €,285.88 6,241.03
Less: rebate to consumers 47.71 50,17
Revenue from contract with customers 6,238.17 5,180.86

28.3.2 Cther operating revenue
{a) Amartisation of consurmner contributien and government grant 75.56 67.72
(D)  Recovery of meter Rent 39.85 27.28
{c) Ovar drawal Payment recovered 20.80 31.48
(d) Supervision Charges 30.56 24,18
{e} Miscallanecus operating incame 12.59 9.43
) Cross Subsidy & Open Actess Charges 197.47 540,07
3E0.82 7007
Revenue from operations 6,6519.00 6,881.03

Disaggregation of revenug

‘The Company deals in a single type of product i.e. power which is sold directly to consumers, consideration in respect of which is based on
anergy supplied . Thus further disclosure in respect of disaggregation of revenue is not reguired.
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28.4

28.5

Note 29

(=)
(b)
{c}
(d)
(=)
®

Contract Balances
The following table provides information about recelvables, contract assets and contract liabilities from centracts with customers

As At As At
particulirs March 31, 2024  March 31,2023
Contract liabilities ¥ in Crare Z in Crore
Advance from consumers 80.68 £9.26
Total contract liabilities 50,68 69.26
Recelvables
Trade receivables 934,02 830,50
Unbilled revenue dependina only on passage of time 404.63 431,25
Less ; Allowances for doubtful debts {421.82) (182 96}
Net receivables 016,83 1.078.79

Contract assets
Contract asset is the right te consideration in exchange for goods or sarvices transferred to the custormer. Contract assets are transferred to

receivables when the rights become unconditional
Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration Is dua) from the customer. If a customer pays censideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the
customer, a contract Hability s recognized when the payment js made or the payment is due (whichever is earliar). Contract lizbilities are
recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract ,l.e., normally within twelve months frem the reparting date.

Significant changas In the contract assets and the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:

Contract Assets

As at March 31, As at March 3%,

Particulars 2024 2023
% in Crore % in Crore

Unbifled revenue
Opening balance as at 1 April 431.25 394.09
Add: Ravenue recognised during the year 404,63 431.25
Less: Transfer from contract assets to recefvables/adjustments {431.25) (324.09)
Closing BEalance 404.63 431.25

Contract Liabilities
As at March 31,  As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 20323
¥ in Crora % in Crore

Advance fram consumers

Qpening balance as at 1 Aprll 69.26 51.92
Revenue recognised / adjusted during the yesr 40,27 32,41
Advance received during the year not recognised as revenue {28.85) (15.06)
Closing Ealance 80.68 69.26
T ion Price - Parfor e Obligation

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of
the reporting year and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts In revenue. Applying the practical
expedient as glven In ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance abligation related disclosures for contracts as the
revenue recognized corresponds directly with the vaiue to the customer of the entity’s performance completed to date,

Other income

Accounting Policy

= Interest income

Interest income from a financiat asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will ftaw to the Cempany and the ameount
of income can be measured refiably. Interest income is accrued cn a time basis, by reference tc the princlpal outstanding and =t the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount en initial recognition.

- Delayed Payment Charges {DFC)

DPC is charged at the rate prescribed by the Tariff Regulations on the cutstanding balance. Revenue in respect of DPC and Interest on DPC
leviable as per the Ta:iif Regulatichs are recognized on actual realisation or accrued based on an assessment of certainty of realization
supported by an acknowledgement from custorners.,

- Incentive on past arrears coflaction

As per terms of GERC vesting order, the Cempany is eligible for incentive on past arrear collections pertaining te year prior to March 31, 2020.
Income in respect of incentive Is recognized as percentage of actual realization of past arrears.

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024  March 31,2023

% in Crore % in Crere
Interest iIncome 138.27 96.34
Delayed payment surcharge 15.49 20.59
Income from sale of scraps 7.91 4.89
Gain on sale of Short Term Invastments 7.18 5.82
Incentives on Arrears Collection 6,32 11.44
Other Income B.74 2.59

183.88 14161
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Note 30

Cast of power purchased and transmission charges

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

T in Crore Z in Crore
(a) Power purchase cost 5,425.53 4,806.26
Transmission charges 299.62 356.56
SLDC charges 2.06 1.67
Less: rebate on power purchased, transmission charges and SLEC charges 54,22 £5.79
5,662.99 5,054.80

Note 31
Employee benefits expense (net)

Year Ended Year Ended
March 1, 2024 March 31,2023

Z in Crore % in Crore
(8) Salaries, wages and bonus 311,11 267.66
{b) Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 20} 163.74 130.66
{c} Gratuity and ex~gratia (Refer note 20) 13,83 8,11
(d) Compensated absences 24,04 12.80
(e) Staff welfare axpanses 16.17 10,89

113] Equity settied options granted by parent company (Refer note below) 0.33 -
Less : Employes Cost Capitalization 25.66 15,23
503.66 414.89

Note; Share Based Payments

Accounting policy

The Tata Power Company Limited ("Holding Company™) has granted employes steck options to the eligible employeas of the company, As per
the scheme, on fufilling of the vesting condition the Holding Company will issue fts equity shares to the eligible empleyses of the Company.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value of holding company’s share at the date when the grant is made using
an appropriate valuation modef, That cost is recognised over the period in which the perfermance and/or service cenditions are fulfilled in
employee benefis expense. The cumulative expense recegnised for equity-settled transactions st each reporting date untdl the vesting date
reflects the extent te which the vesting period has expired and the companies best astimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ulimately vest. The expense or credit in the statement of profit and joss for 2 period represents the movement in cumulative expense
recognised as at tha beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are net taken inte account when determining the grant data fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is essessed as part of the companies best estimate of the number of equity Instruments that wili
ultimately vest. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and |zad to an immedizte expensing of an award unless
there are also sarvice and/or performance conditions.

No expense is reccgnised for swards that de not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or sarvice conditions have not been
met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting cendition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all cther parformance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the grant date fair value of the unmodified
award, provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An additional expense, measured as at the date of modification, i
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or Is otherwise beneficial ta the
employea. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element af the fair value of the award is
expensed immediately through profit or loss.

Equity-settled share option plan
The Tata Power Company Limited ~ Employee Stock Option Plan 2023

During the year, the sharehelders of the Holding Company approved ‘The Tata Power Company Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2023’
("ESOP 20237 'Plan”). During this year, the Holding Company has granted amployee stock options to the elloible employses of the Helding
and its subsidiaries, including employess of the Company at an exercise price of Rs. 249.80 (Rupeas Two Hundred Forty Nine and Eighty
Paise) per option exercisable into equivalent equity shares of ¥ 1 each subject to fulfilment of vesting conditions.

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
% in Crore % In Crore

Expense arising from equity-sattled share-based payment transactions 0.33 2
Total expense arising fram share-based payment transactions 0.33 -
Movements during the year
Option exercisable at the beginning of the year - -
Granted during the year 2,40,500 -
Farfeited/Expired during the year = =
Exercised during the year = =
Expired during the year - =
QOption exarcisable at the end of the year 2,40,500 -
Number of shares to be issued for cutstanding options
{conditional on performance measures)
Maxirmum
Minimum
Share price far options exercised during the year Mot applicable -
Remnaining contractual life 2.58 Yaars B

The holding company has estimated falr value of optlens using Black Scholes model. The fallowing assumptions were used for calculation of
fair value of options granted.

As at As at

March 21, 2024 March 31,2022
Assumpiion factor ¥ in Crore Z in Crore
Dividend Yiald (%) 0.70% -
Rigk free interest rate (%) 7.21% -
Expected life of share option (Years) 3 - 5 Years =
Expected volatility (%) 39.81% B
Weighted Average Share price 24%.80 -
Weighted Average Fair Value at the measurement date 97.75 -

The expected volatility reflects the assumptien that the historical volatility over & period similar to the ¥ife of the options is Indicative of future
trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome,

Also, refer note 41 for related party disclosure
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Note 32

Finance costs

Accounting Policies

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of gualifying assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funcds.
Borrowing cost also inciudes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
% in Crore Z in Crore
(&) Financial Charges 2,81 5.12
(b} Interest on consumer security deposits carried at amortised cost 74.73 63.94
(c) Interest on Cash Credit carried at amortised cost 0.32 4.45
(d) Interest on Term Loans carried at amortised cost - banks 24.70 11.56
102.55 85.07
Less: Interest Capitatised 2,77 3.63
99.78 81.44
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Z in Crore Z in Crore
Note 33
Other expenses
{a) Repairs and maintenance:
{i} Building 0.11 0.13
{ii) Plant and equipment 233.05 233.00
(b} Rent 1.96 2.52
(c) Legal and professional charges (Refer Note 33.1) 5.06 3.81
{d) Rates & Taxes 2.09 0.02
{e) Advertisement & Marketing Expenses 2.45 1.97
(f) Electricity Consumption Expenses 7.39 5.83
{q) Telephone Expenses 3.04 2.37
(h) Insurance Premium 3.61 1.80
(i) Travelling Expenses 14,77 16.11
[6)} Office Expenses 3.48 3.14
(k) Allowance for doubtful debts 238.86 129.41
{ Other Administrative Expenses 40,95 24,52
(m) Spot billing and meter reading expenses 49,17 34.79
{n) Input & collection based Franchisee Expenses 54.23 56.72
{o) Corperate social responsibility Expenses (Refer Note 33.2) 2.61 1.36
{p) Director's sitting fees 0.54 0.47
{9)  Cutsource and Contratual labour cost 41.52 35.87
{r) Miscellanegus expenses 3.78 3.77
Total other expenses 708.66 557.70
33.1  Auditors remuneration
Legal and professional charges include auditor's remuneration as follows:
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
T in Crore Z in Crore
As Auditors :
Statutory Audit fees (including Goods and Services Tax)* 0.75 0.70
Tax Audit Fees 0.02 0.02
Other services (certification fees) 0.03 D.01
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.04 0.01
0.84 0.74

*Including fees for earlier years  0.00 crores( March 31,2023: F 0.21 craores)
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33.2

Note 34

34.1

34.2

Corporate social responsibility expenditure

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
¥ in Crore % in Crore
a) Gross amount reguired to be spent by the 261 1.36
company during the year ! !
b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent
during the year 2.51 1.36
T in Crore
¢} Amount spent during the year ending on March 31,2024: In cash Outstanding Total
i} Construction/acquisition of any asset - - i
ii) On purposes other than (i) above 2.61 - 2.61
Z in Crore
d) Amocunt spent during the year ending on March 31,2023: In cash Qutstanding Total
i} Construction/acquisition of any asset - = =
ii) On purposes other than (i) above 1,36 - 1.36
e) Details related to spent / unspent cbligations:
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Z in Crore Z in Crore
i. Employability and Employment (Skilling for Livelihoods) 0.40 0.15
ii, Education (Including Financial and Digital Literacy) 0.76 0.43
iii. Essential Services (Health & Environment) 1.05 0.51
iv. Entrepreneurship 0.36 0.23
v. Volunteering Programs 0.04 0,04
2.61 1.36

Tax expenses
Accounting policy
Tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted at the reporting date in the country where the
Company operates and generates taxable income.,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the undertying transaction either in OCI or directly In equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect fo situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value
method, depending on which method predicts better reselution of the treatment.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the termporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no lenger probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecegnised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabillties and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have heen enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to iterns recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside prefit or loss {(either in other comprehensive income or
in equity).

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income or
in equity).

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upen the likely timing and the leveal of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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34.3 Tax expense Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Current tax ¥ in Crore % in Crore
In respect of the current year 73.92 49.49
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years 14.70 (10.00)
88.62 39.49
Deferred tax (45.92) (7.54)
Adjustment of Deferred tax relating to earlier years (16.76) -
(62.68) {7.54)
Total income tax expense recognised during the year 25.94 31.95

34.4 Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate :

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Z in Crore T in Crore
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 100.72 123.03
Tax Expenses at the Indian tax rate of 25,17% 25.35 30.98
True up impact of previous year {0.07) 0.63
CSR Expenses 0.66 0.34
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 25.94 31.95

Income tax expense
The Company has made provision for income tax at the rate of 25.168% { Tax rate 22% Plus Surcharge 10% Plus cess 4% on tax &
surcharge } in accordance with normal provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 for the year ended March 31,2024 and March 31, 2023,

34.5 Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax asset/(liability) on account of : As at As At March 31
March 31,2024 2023
Tax impact arising out of temporary differences in depreciable assets Z in Crore % in Crore
Property plant and equipment (55.94) (27.93)
Tax impact of expenses allowable against taxable income in future years
Provision for doubtful debts 106,16 46.06
Expenses allowed on payment basis 30.95 -
Tax impact on Ind AS adjustments
Unrealised gain on Mutual Fund (0.35) -
Total 80.82 18.13
Movement in deferred tax balance for the period ended March 31, 2024
Opening balance Recognised in the Closing balance
Particulars as at March 31, statement of Profit as at March 31,
2023 and Loss 2024

¥ in Crore T in Crore % in Crore
Deferred tax assets
Tax impact of expenses allowable against taxable 46.05 91.06 137.11
income in future years
Total deferred tax assets 46.05 91.06 137.11
Deferred tax liabilities
Tax impact arising out of temporary differences in (27.93) (28.01) {55.94)
depreciable assets
Tax impact on Ind AS adjustments - (0.35) (0.35)
Total deferred tax liabilities {27.93) (28.36) (56.30)

Deferred tax assets (net) 18,13 62.68 80.82




TP WESTERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

Note 35 Other comprehensive income/{expenses)

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Z in Crore Z in Crore
Items that will not be lassified te profit ar loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (52.11) (46.43)
Net Movement in regulatory deferral balances 52,11 46,43

Total other comprehensive income - -

Note:

Post-acquisition of business, the Company has decided to treat pension and gratuity benefits payable to erstwhile WESCO employees
which are continuing in employment at the date of acquisition as defined benefit plan under Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits. Consequently,
the cost and liability of providing such benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method (PUCM). Among other matters, the
application of PUCM results in recegnition of remeasurement gain/ loss, comprising items such as actuarial gains and losses and effect of
the asset ceiling, in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The amount of remeasurement gain/ loss fluctuates year on year based on
changes in actuarial assumptions including discount rate and mortality rate.

To ensure offsetting impact in the OCI and the Balance Sheet, the Company recognizes equivalent amount as Regulatory Deferral Account
- Income/ expense in the OCI. The amount of Regulatory Deferral Account — Income/ expense recognized in the OCE in this manner
fluctuates in line with and in opposite direction to the Remeasurement gain/ loss. Based on the Vesting Order, the Company will be
allowed to include and recover this amount as revenue from customers only when the amount is paid to the trust for onward payment to

employees.




TP WESTERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

As At As At
Note 36 March 21, 2024 March 31,2023
Commitments: ¥ crore % crore
Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed en capital account and not provided for: 593,90 411.01

As per terms of vesting order, cumulative capital expenditure of ? 1,663 crores (FY 2022-26) has been committed. Further, commitment in respect of AT&C losses
reduction and past arrears collection have also been stated in the vesting order.

Note 37
Contingent liabilities
Contingent liability is:
{a) a possible obligation arising from past avents and whose existence will be confirmed only on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not whelly within the control of the entity or
(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but Is not recognised bacause:
- it is not probable that an outflow of resources embedying 2conomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or
- the amount of the cbligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

The Company does not recognize a contingent lizbility but discloses the same as par the requirements of Ind AS 37.

A contingent asset is 2 possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by- the occurrence or nen-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity, The Company does not recognise the contingent asset in its financial statements since this may result
in the recognition of income that may never be realised, Where an inflow of economic benefits are probable, the Company disclose a brief description of the nature of
contingent assets at the end of the reporting pericd. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and the
Company recognise such assets,

Provisicns, contingent liabilities and centingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

As At As At
Particular March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
¥ crore ¥ crore
37.01 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
(i) Legal cases filed by consumers, employees and others under Htigation 18.43 20.01
37.02 Indirect taxation matters relating to sales tax, service tax, GST demand for FY 2014-15 to June 2017 including Interest 75.86 75.86

till 31st March 21 where demand js under contest before judicial/appellate authorities CESTAT, Kolkata and deposited &
2.96 Crore @7.5% of principal demand of ¥ 39.41 Crore.

No provision is considered necessary since the Company expects favourable decisions as well as past lfabllities are pass thraugh in tariff.

37.03 Before acquisition, WESCQ Utility was not identifying and tracking dues payable to MSME venders separately, Consequently, it was not tracking whether timely
payments ara being made to such vendors and/ or interest/ penalty, if any, payabile for delay in making payment. Past acquisition, the Company has Initlated a
process and identified MSME venders based on confirmations recaived, In the absence of adequate data, the Company is unable to detarmine whether any interest
of penalty is payable for past default. The management will be able to identify 2nd recognize such obligation, if any, based on claims racgived,

37.04 As per terns of vesting order all litigations pertaining to WESCO have been transferred to the Company and n case of any unfavourable cutcome the Cempany
will be able to recover the liabllity through Aggregate Revenue Requirement.

37.05 Refer Note 27 {v} for contingent iability on account of truing up order by OERC.

Note 33
Earnings per equity share {EPS)

Accounting policy
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Difuted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company [after adjusting for dividend, interest and other charges to
expense or Income (net of any attributable taxes)] by the weighted average number of Bquity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of ali the dilutive petential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The Company 2lso presents Basic earnings per equity share in accordance with Ind AS 114, "Regulatory Deferral Accounts™ which is computed by dividing the profit/{loss)
for the reporting year before and after net movament in regulatory deferral account balance attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares cutstanding during the reporting year.

Biluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the the profi¢/(loss) for the reporting year before and after net movermnent in regutatory deferral account balance
attributable to equity shareholders as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) refating to the dilutive
potential equity shares by the wejghted average number of aquity shares cutstanding during the reperting year as adjusted to the effects of all dilutive potential equity
sharas, except where results are anti-dilutive.

38.01 EPS - Cantinuing operations {excluding regulatory income fexpense)

Particulars Units As AL As At
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
&) Profit for the year Z in Crores 74.78 91.08
b) Met mavernent in regulatory deferrai account balance ¥ In Crores 458.47 {638.78}
c) Income-tax attributabls te regulatory deferral account balance Z in Crares 115.40 (160,78}
d) Net movement in regulatory deferral account balance {net of tax) (b-c) % in Crores 343.07 {478.00)
€) Profitf{Loss) far the year from continuing aperations attributable to equity shareholders ¥ in Crares (268.28) 569.08
before net movement in regulatory deferral account balance .
f) Weighted average number of equity shares Nes 48,24,92,092 35,05,93,588
g) Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of 10 each z (5.56) 15.78
) Face valua of equity shares Z 10.00 10.00
28.02 EFS - Continuing operations {including regulatory income/expense)
Particulars Units As At As At
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
a) Profit for the year from continuing operations after net movement in regulstory defarrz| Zin Crores 74,78 91.08
account balance attributable to equity shareholders
b) Weighted average number of equity shares Nos 48,2492 052 36,05,93,588
€) Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of ¥ 10 each Z 1.55 2.53
d) Face value of equity shares Z 10.00 10.00

There have been no other transactions invalving equity shares or potential equity shares betwaen the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial
statements.
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Note 39

Financial Instruments : Accounting classifications, Fair value measuraments, Financial Risk management and offsetting of financial assets and liabilitias

This sectian gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides sdditionsl information on balance sheet iterns that contsin financial instruments.
The details of material accounting palicies, including the criteria for recognitien, the basls of measuremant and the basis on which incoma and expenses are recognised in respect of each
ciass of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in the financial stataments,

(i) Accounting classifications
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
fiquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used o estimate the fair valuas:
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, short term deposits, trada payables, capital creditars, short term loans from banks, financial institutions and others
are considerad to be the same as thair fair values, due to their short-term natura. Most financial assets and liabilities of the Company as at the balance sheet date are short term having fair

value equal tc amortised cost.

(ii) Fair Value measurements and Hierarchy
The Company uses the fallowing hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by vatuation technique:

Ltevel 1; Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or iiahilities.
tevel 2; Inputs other than quoted price included within Level 1 that are pbservable for the asset or fizgbility, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (l.e. derived from prices)

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for fair valuation of assets and liability

Fair Value
The foliowing table summarizes the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and financial liabilities that are either measured at fair value on a recurring basis or are not measured at fair
value {but fair value disclosures are required} and the carrying value of financial instruments by categories:

March 31, 2024

T crore
Carrying Classification Fair Value
Particufars Value FVTPL FVTOCI Amortisad Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Investments 265.39 265.39 O = - 265.39 -
Trade receivables 512.20 - - E12.20 - - -
Unbilled Revenue 404.63 - - 404,63 - - =
Cther financial assets {current and non=curent} 308.26 - - 309.26 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 385,00 = = 289.00 - - -
Bank balances other than above 1,876.25 - - 1,876.25 = - -
3,756.72 265.39 - 3,491,323 = 265.39 =
Financtal Liabilities Carrying Classification Fair Value
Value FYTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 2
Borrowings 408.81 - 408.81 = = =
"frade payables 945,45 2 = 945.45 - - -
ather financial liabilities 1,749.66 - - 1,749.66 - - -
3,103.92 . - 3,103.92 - - 3
March 31, 2023
T crore
Particulars Carrying Classification i Fair Value
Value FVTPL FVYTOCI Amportised Cost Leval 1 Leval 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Investments 254,35 294,35 = = 2 284.35 -
Trade receivables 647.54 = = £47,54 = = =
Unbilied Revenue 431,25 = cJ 431.25 - o -
Other financial assets (current and non-current) 362.92 = = 362.92 - - -
(:ash and cash equivalents 745.70 = - 745,70 - - -
Bank balances other than (i} above 1,685.13 = = 1,685.13 - - -
4,166,89 294.55 = 3,872.54 - 294.35 -
Financial Liabilities Carrying Classification Fair value
Value FVTPL FYTOCI Amortised Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Borrowings 223.78 - 223.78 = = =
Trade payables 841.26 - - 841.26 - - -
Other financial liabilities 1,546.40 = = 1,546.40 3 = -
2,611.44 o o 2,611,449 2 o .

There have bean no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,
The Company considers that the carrying amounts of financtal assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial statements at amortised cost will reasonably approximate their fair
valua,




TP WESTERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

(iii) Capital Management & Gearing Ratio

For the purpose of the Company's capital mansgement, capital includes issued equity capital and all ather eguity reserves attributabie to the equity holders of the Company. The Company’s
objectives far managing capital comprise safeguarding the business as a going concern, creating velue for stakehoiders and supporting the development of the Company. In particular, the
Company seeks to maintain an adequate capitalisation that enables it to achieve a satisfactory return for sharehofders and ensure access to external sources of financing, in part by
maintzining an adequate rating.

The Company rmoenitors capital using & gearing retio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.

The Company's capital structure consists of net debt and total equity. The Company includes within net debt, Interest bearing borrowings, less cash and bank balances as detajled below.
The pasition on reporting date is summarised in tha following table:

As AL As At
March 31,2024 | March 31,2023

¥ crore ¥ crore
Long-term borrowings 389,84 208,80
Short-term borrowings 18,97 15.98
Total Debt (&) 408.81 223.78
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents {b) 389.00 745.70
Net debt {{c)=(a-t)} 19.82 -
Total equity {d) 876.56 634.00
Total equity and net debt {{e}={c+d}} B96.38 634.00
Net debt to total equity plus net debt ratic (%) {{f}={c)/(e)} 0.02 -

i. Debt is defined as long-term borrowings {including current maturities) and short-term borrowings and interest accrued on long-term and short-term borrowings.

ii. Equity is defined as Equity share capital and other equity.

In erder to achiave this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans
and berrowings that define capital structure requirements, Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have bean
no significant breaches In the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the currant year,

No changes were made in the objectives, policles or processes for managing capltal during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

{iv) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, consumers’ security deposit, trade and other payabies and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities Is to financa the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade and other receivables, cash and cash eguivalents, other
balances with banks , unbilled revenue and other financial assets that are derived directly from its operaticns.

The senior managemant of the Company oversees these risks and are managed in accordance with the Companies policies arxi risk ochjectives.

{v) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices wil affect the Cempany’s inceme or value of it's helding of financial instruments, The objective of market risk management is to
manage and cantral market risk exposures within acceptable paramseters, while optimising the return. As at the reporting date, the Company doss not have material financial assets of
financial liabiiities exposing it to significant market risk comprising foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

The variable rate of borrowing will not have any impact on profit & loss of the company 25 Inferast cost is pass-through to consumars through ARR,

Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and prica risk.

{vi) Interest Rate Risk Management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interast rates, The Company’'s expasure to the risk of
changes in market interest retes relates primarily to the Company's Long term debt abligations with floating interest rates.

Interest rates on floating rate loans are linked with different benchmarks (e.q. MCLR/T- Biis etc) to distribute the risk wherever pessible. Further, senior management of the Company
monitars its interest rate risi regutarly ang may take appropriate acticn If needed to mitigate risk.

Any fluctuation in the floating interest rate will be allowed as pass through to the Company as part of the Annual Revenua Reqguiremant (ARR). Hence, the Company is of the view that the
interest rate sensitivity on account of interest rate fluctuation will rot have any material impact of its financial positien or financial parformance as refiected in the financlal statements.

wii} Credit Ri

Credit risk refers t¢ the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in finzncial loss to the Company. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarfly trade recefvables and unbilled revenus) and other financial instruments.

As At As At
Particulars March 21,2024 | tarch 31,2023

% crore T crore
{2} Trade receivables 512.20 647,54
{b) Unbilled revenue 404.63 431.25
(¢} Cther financial assets 309.26 362,92
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 389.00 745.70
(e) Bank balances other than above 1,876.25 1,685.13
Total 3,451.33 3,872.54

In case of trade receivables and unbilled revenue, senior management of the Cernpany monitors overdue amount on regular basis and take appropriate action, including forfeiture of
security deposit and/ or discannection of electricity, to get timely dues. Refer Note 13 for further details of credit risk/ loss allowance on trade receivables.. Most of the cash and bank
balances of the Company are with scheduled commercial banks where risk of default is low.
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Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations assoclated with financial liabilities that are settled by dellvering cash or another financial assat. The
Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by
m&tching the maturity prefiles of financial assets and liabliities. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding.

The follewing table detals the Cempany's ramaining contractual maturity for #s financlal liabilities with agraed repayment years, ignoring the call and refinancing options available with the
Company, The tables have bean drawn up basad cn the undiscounted cash flows of financlal [abilities based on the earliest date on which the Cempany can be reguired to pay, Tha tables
include both tnterest and principal cash flews. The amounts Included below for variable interest rate instruments for non-derivative liabllities is subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ to thase estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting year.

¥ crore
Particulars Upto 1 year 1to 5 years 5+ years Total
As at March 31,2024
(a} Trade payables 945.45 - - 945,45
(b) Short term borrowings 18,97 = = 18.97
{c) Long term borrowings = 106.39 283.4% 389.84
{d) Other financial liabilities 1,749.66 - - 1,749.66
2,714.08 106.39 283.45 3,103.92
Z crore
Particutars Upto 1 year 1to 5 years 5+ years Total
As at March 31,2023
(a} Trade payables 841.26 = B 841.26
{b) Shert term borrowings 16.98 - - 16.98
(c) Long term borrowings 16.98 57.92 121.90 206.80
{d) Other financial liabilities 1,546.40 = - 1,546.40
2,421.62 67.92 121.90 2,611.44

As at the balancea sheet date, the Company has cash and bank balances (current and non-current) of 7 2,521.83 crores (March 31,2023 € 2,765.73 crores) which can be used to meet its
obligation, In case of requirement, the management: is confident of raising further finance as required to meet its obligations. The Company has access to financing facilities as described in
note 19 & 23, The Company expects to meet Its obligations from operating cash flows and proceeds of maturing financial assets.
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Note 40

Business Combinations
The Company has been incorporated on December 30, 2020 under the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended), Pursuant
to vesting order issued by the OERC dated December 28, 2020, the Company acquired the business of distributing
power in Western Orissa ("business’) from WESCO with effect from January 1, 2021 {vesting date). Accordingly, the
Company is a licensee to carry out the function of distribution and retail supply of electricity covering the distribution
circies of Rourkela, Sambalpur, Bhawanipatna, Bolangir and Bargargh in the state of Odisha for a year of 25 years
effective from January 1, 2021.

The Carve Out order dated November 23, 2021 issued by the OERC acknowledges that underlying details are not
available for certain assets and liabilities. In accordance with the Carve Out Order, these amounts have been
transferred to the Company and will continue to be its liabilities, and they cannot be paid without verification. These
liabilitias need to be verified through an external agency. Once verified, the Company is obliged to discharge the same
upon the OERC approval, These liabilities cannot be written off without the Board and the QERC approval. Pending
legal release, the Company continues to recognise these liabilities at the state amounts reflecting acquisition date fair
values.In accordance with the vesting order, any change in the value of assets and liahilities transferred on account of
the reconciliation / resolution of the above matters and / or any other matter identified in future will be aliowed to be
recovered by the Company in the manner specified in the vesting order, viz,, by way of future tariff adjustment or
adjustment to the grant liability. Hence, the Company believes that the reconciliation / resolution of the above matters
will not have any impact on the financial position and financial performance of the Company as reflected in the
financial statements.

For the following assets and liabilities, the acquisition date records are incomplete and under reconciliation:

(a) Carrying amount of security deposits as per the general ledger is lower by ¥ 7.41 Crores as compared to balance
as per customer ledger at the same date.

(b) Vendor / customer details are not available for the following items:
{i) Sundry Creditors for Expenses amounting to ¥ 7.82 crores;
(i} Advance payment/deposit for consumers for capital works amounting to ¥ 44.60 crores; and
{iii) Other assets amounting to ¥ 4.30 crores.

(c) The Company, with the WESCO management and the help/guidance of the OERC, is in the process of reconciling/
resolving the above matters and adjustments, if any, will be recognized post reconciliation and resolution of the
matters As stated above, the Vesting Order provides that any change in the value of assets and liabilities transferred
on account of the reconciliation / resolution of the above matters and/ or any other matter identified in future will be
allowed to be recovered by the Company in the manner specified in the vesting order. Hence, the Company believes
that the reconciliation/ resolution of the above matters will not have any impact on the financial position and financial
performance of the Company as reflected in the financial statements.
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Nate 41
Related party disclosures
Names of related parties where control exists and other related parties where transactions took place :
A. Holding company
The Tatz Powar Company Limitad {TPCL}

B. Promoters holding together with its subsidiary mare than 20% in holding company
“Tata Sans Private Limited {Tata Sons}

C. Company exercising significant influence
GRIDCO Limited

e

Fellow Subsidiaries (with whom company has transactions)}
Maithon Power Limited (MPL}

Tata Power Renewable Energy Limited (TPREL)

Tata Powar Solar Systems Limited [TPSSL)

TP Ajmer Distribution Limitad (TPADL)

Tata Power Delhi Distribution Ltd {TPDDL)

TP Northemn Odisha Distribution Limited (TPNODL)

TP Southern Odisha Distribution Limited {TPSODL)

TF Central Odisha Distribution Smited (TPCODL)

Power Link Transmission Ltd {FTL)

m

Jaint Venture of Holding Company (with whom company has transactions)
Industrial Energy Limited {IEL}

F. Subsidiaries and Jointly Controfled Entities of Promuoters of Holding Company - Promoter Group
{with whom the Company has transactions)

Tata Consultancy Services Lid (TCS)

Tate Capital Financial Services Ltd {TCFSL)

Tate Capital Limited

Tata Empleyess Co-op. Credit Soclety

Tata AIG Gsneral Insurance Company

Tata Communications Limitad

Veltas Limited

G. Associate of Holding Company
Tata Projects Lid

H, Fost retirement employee benafit, trust
WESCO Employees Pension trust
WESCO Employees Gratulty trust
WESCO Ernployees Provident Fund trust
WESCO Employees Rehabilitation Fund trust
1. Key management personnel
Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Gajanan Sampatrac Kale

Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Satlsh Kumar

Company Secretary
Shishir Dudeja

Non-executive directors

Dr. Pravesr Sinha

Mr. Suresh Chandra Mahapatra (Date of cessation February 28, 2023}
Mr. Nikunja Blhari Dhal (From June 19, 2023}

Mr. Arup Ghosh

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Banga

Mr. Nipun Agarwal (Date of cessation April 18, 2022)

Mr. Kesava Mencn Chandrasekhar (Date of cessation February 19, 2023)
Mr. Umakanta Sahoo

Mr. Trilechan Panda

Mr. Sanjeev Gupta (From April 28, 2022}

Mr. Pradeep Kumar Jena {From April 11, 2023}

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Singh (Fram April 11, 2023 to May 26, 2023)

Mr. Rajeey Skarma (From April 11, 2023}

Mr. Sunit Singh (From October 20, 2023)

Mr. Vishal Kurnar Dev {From November 21, 2023}

Independent directors

Mr. Kaitash Nath Shrivastava
Dr. Aditi Reja

Dr. Rabi Narsyan Bohidar
Mr. Rabindra Nath Nayak




Relzated party tr ions and bal

a. Particulars of trar i with the ralatad parties: T in crores
I Year ended Year ended
No Name of Related Party Nature of transactions March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
1 {Purchase of Fower
GRIDCO Limited Power purchase expenses nat of rebate 5,366.22 4,009.46
2 |Issue of Equity Shares
GRIDCO Limited {ssue of equity shares 82,21 58.93
The Tata Power Company Limited {TPCL} Issue of equity shares 85,57 61.33
3 |Repayment of Dues
Maithon Power Limited (MPL) Recovary of Employee Loan - 0.01
The Tata Power Company Limited {TPCL} Recovary of Emplioyee Lean 0.02 0.08
4 |Gratuity & Annual Leave
The Teta Power Company Limited {TPCL) Gratuity and Leave lizbifity transfarred - 2.58
TP Central Odisha Distribution Limited{TPCODL) Gratuity and Leave lisbiifty transferred - 0.31
Tata Power Solar Systems Limited (TPSSL) Gratuity and Leave lizbility ransferred - D.12
TP Ajmer Distribution Limited (TPADL) Gratuity and Leave lizbility twansferrad - 0.08
Tata Projects Lid Gratuity and Leava lizbility transferrad - 0.01
Tata Power Delhi Distribution Ltd (TPDDL) Gratuity 2nd Leave liability transferred - 0.85
5 |Supply of Material, Management Services and Other Services
Tata Sons Private Limited (Tata Sons) Management Services 8.02 0.01
Tata Consultancy Services Ltd {TCS) Consultancy Services 10.72 8.65
Tata Capital Financial Services Ltd (TCFSL) Rental Services Received 0.28 ¢.z21
Tata Capital Limited Rental Services Received 0.07 -
Tata AlG General Insurance Company Insurance Servicas 5.47 3.17
Tata Communications Limited IT Services 0.13 Q.14
Voltas Limited Supply of Material 0.66 1.27
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) Supgly of materials and Management Services 1.186 071
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) Employee settled option granted by parent company** 0,33 -
Power Link Transmission Ltd (PTL) Supgly of Material - 0.00
TP Northemn Odisha Distribution Limited(TPNDDL) Supgly of Material 0,01 0.31
TP Central Cdisha Distribution Umited(TFCODL) Inter Discom Power Purchase 0.01 0.04
TP Central Cdisha Disteibution Limitad{TFCODL) Supply of Material and Management Services 0,37 D.14
TP Southern Odisha Distribution Limited {TPS0DL) Inter Discom Power Purchase 0.51 -
TF Ajrner Distribution Limited (TPADL) Supply of Material - 0.03
Tata Pawer Dethi Distribution Ltd (TPSDL) Supply of Material and Management Servicas 0.10 0.75
& |Transaction with Trust
WESCO Employees Pansicn trust Cantribution of Pension 117,28 100,78
WESCO Employees Gratuity trust Contribution of Gratuity g8.11 10.93
WESCO Employees Provident Fund trust Contributlon of Provident Fund 9.60 9.55
WESCO Employees Rehabliitation Fund trust Contribution of Rehabilitation Fund 0.60 0.35
Tatz Employess Co-op. Cradit Soclety Contribution to Co-operative Society 0.00 0.00
7 |Managerial remuneration inctuding diractors' sitting fee*** Managerial remuneration ard sitdng fees 3.26 2.87
Total 5,692,72 4,273.68

***Provisions for gratuity, compensated absences and other long term service benefits are made for the Company as a whol

key management personnel are not specifically identified and hence are not included above,

e and the amounts pertaining to the

b. Particulars of putstanding balances with the related parties: ¥ in crores
51 As at As ak
No Name of Related Party Nature of transactions March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
1 lShare Capital
The Tata Power Company Limited {TPCL) Equity Share capital 330.47 244,80
GRIDCO Limited Equity Share capital 317.51 #3530
2 |Payables
GRIDCO Limited Power purchase expenses net of rebate 770.11 £24.63
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) Recovery of Employee Loan 0.10 0,08
'The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) Consuliant services 0.63 =
' The Tatz Power Comnpany Limited (TPCL) Employee settled option granted by parent company™* 0.33 =
The Tata Power Cornpany Limited (TRCL) Supply of Material .01 3
Tata Power Solar Systems Limited {TPS5L) Gratuity & Annual Leave 0.06 .06
Tata Consultancy Services Ltd {TCS) Consuitancy Services 5.73 1.99
Tata A1G General Insurance Company Insurance Services 0.03 =
'Tata Communications Lirmnited IT Services 0.02 0,02
Tata Projects Ltd Gratuity & Annual Leave 0.00 0,00
Tata Projects Ltd Supply of Materiaf 0.56 0.56
TP Central Odisha Distribution Limited({TPCODL) Inter Discarn Power Purchase, Supply of Material = 1.20
3 |Receivablas
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) Gratuity & Annual Leave 1.35 1.35
Industrial Energy Limited (IEL) Gratuity & Annual Leave - 0.01
Maithon Powear Limited {MPL) TDS Recovery - 0.01
TP Ajmer Distribution Limited ({TPADL) Gratuity & Annual Leave - 0.61
Powerlink Transmission Limfted {PTL) Gratuity & Annuak Leave 0.10 0.10
TP Central Odisha Distribution Limited(TPCODL) Gratwity & Annual Laave - 0.05
TP Northem Odisha Distribution Limited(TPNODL) Supply of Material 0.24 0.00
Total 1,427.24 1,110,88

* 0.00 represents amount below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company

** Refer note 31
# Balances represents gross amount
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Note 42

Disclosure regarding details of assets created with Government Fund and used by TPWODL

As per last details provided by the Odisha Power Transmission Company Limited {(OPTCL) vide e-mail dated April 18, 2023, certain assets
were created for CESU through different schemes formed by the government and executed by OPTCL. Based on details shared by OPTCL,
the carrying amount of such assets as of March 31, 2024 is ¥2,955.92 crore (March 31, 2023: ¥3,038.13 crore) for completed assets and
¥53.46 crore (March 31, 2023: ¥53.46 crore} for work in progress{WIP)}. These are subject to detailed verification and reconciliation by

various authorities.

As per the Vesting Order, the ownership of these assets has not been transferred to the Company; however, it can continue to use these
assets for supply of power to the consumer. Since the Company is not able to charge any depreciation for these assets in the ARR, the fair
value of these assets for the Company at the vesting date is Nil. Details are given below:

% in Crore
As at March 31,2024

Name of Schemes Completed WIp Total
Qdisha Distribution System Strengthening Project (0D§SP)* 854,25 43.46 897.71
Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyeoti Yojana (DDUGIY) 285.72 - 285.72
Integrated Power Development Scheme (IPDS) 214.44 - 214.44
Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyotl Yojana (DDUGIY) 12TH PLAN (POWER GRID) 492.92 - 492,92
Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojana (DDUGIY) 12TH PLAN (NTPC) 1,023.71 - 1,023,71
Renovation long term action plan (RLTAP) 80.00 10.00 20.00
Total 2,955,92 53.46 3,009.38

Zin Crore

As at March 31,2023

Name of Schemes Comph_e_ted WIP Total
Odisha Distribution System Strengthening Project (ODSSP)Y* 936.46 43.46 979,92
Deen Payal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojana (DDUGIY) 285.72 - 285.72
Integrated Power Development Scheme {IPDS) 214.44 - 214.44
Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojana (DDUGIY) 12TH PLAN (POWER GRID) 492,92 - 492,92
Samleswari Temple , Sbp 4.88 - 4.88
Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram lyoti Yojana (DDUGIY) 12TH PLAN (NTPC) 1,023.71 = 1,023.71
Renovation long term action plan (RLTAP) 80.00 10.00 90.00
Total 3,038.13 53.46 3,091.59

* Excluding & 82.21 crore {March 31, 2023 : ¥ 58.93 crore) as it is a part of equity contribution by GRIDCO during the vear ended March

31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
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Note 43
Financial Ratics
As at As at
SI No Ratios Numerator Denominator Note March March % of variance R::‘::;zz:r
31,2024 31,2023
a) |Current Ratio (in times) Currant assets Current lizhilities A 1.22 1.51 -18.83% | NA
. . N . Increase Is majorly en account of new term
b} |Debt-equity ratio {in times) Total Debt Total Equity B 0.47 .35 32.13% {can taken from Canara Bank
Profit befora tax + Intarest expense +
i Interest scheduled pringipal
c) z;li;erwce coverage ratio (in expenses + depreciation  [repayment of lang < 12.96 10.55 22.85% |NA
B amertdsation - current  |term debt during the
tax expense year
Decrease is majorly on aceount of increase
. . Average Shareholdar's 5 i Sharehalder's Equity through issue of
b ,24% 74.11% N
d} |Return on equity ratic (%) Net Profit after tax Fund D 9,20% 17.24% e LT
the year.
Trade Receivable turnover ratio {in |Number of days * Ravenue from
' = 5.49% | NA
&} nurmber of days) Average Trade Racalvable |Opeartion E 2ieE ik £hg
Furchasa during the
Trade payables tumover ratio (in number of days * year+ Other Expense - .
f numbar of days) Average Trade Payable expenseas for non i £i86 2573 11,2306 N4
aperating activities
Revenue from Decrease is majorly on account of decrease
sv”mki?er of d;yis: aperation Including net In working capitat due to increase in Trade
g} [Net capital turnover ratio (in times) RIS caphati= movement in G 10.68 4.73 125.63% | Payables, Other Financisl Liabilities and
Current assets — Current 3 )
iabilities Regulatory deferral decrease in Trade Receivables, Cash and
balances Bank
Revenue from
operation including net Decrease is majorly on arcount of decresse
h)  [Net profit ratio (%) Net Profit after tax movement in H 1.06% 1.46% 3#.05% |in grofit for the year and increase in
Regulatary deferral Revanue.
balances
Average Capital Decreasa is majorly on account of increase
Prnﬁt before tax + employad in Capital employed cue to increase in
i} |Return on capital employed (%) :::I::?li:;ﬁ::feest o {Total equity + Total I 13.32% 20.82% -36.03% | Equity Share Capital and new Long term
consumer security deposit Fe;,lt + Deferred tax loan from Canara Bark and decrease in
iability) Prafit before interest and taxas.
Interest incormne + Gain Average (invastment
c m on fair value of current o The ratio has improved due to increase in
I |Return on investment (%) investmant at Fair Value :eH::iE+ Loans Given) ] S50 R 18.80% | epy incerest rates.
through Profit & Less e

1. Inventory turnover ratio is not applicable to the Company.
2. As explained in note related to financial instruments, the Company has access to sufficient liquidity resources ta continue its operations for at least 12 rnonths from the date of approval of financial
statamants,

Notes:
A,

B.

H.

L
3

Current Assets as per balance sheet

Current Liabilities as per balance shest

Total Debt: Leng term borrowings (including current maturities of leng term borrowings), short farm borrowings and interest accrued on these debts
Total Equity : Issued share capitzl and other equity

For the purpose of computation, scheduled principal repayment of long term borrowings doss not include prepayments
Interest expenses & net of interest consumer security deposits
Averzoe Shareholder’s Funds : Aversge Issued share capital ané Other equity
Average Trade Receivables: Trade Receivabies and Unblllad Revenue

Met cradit purchases comprise of: (a) Cost of power purchased and transmission charges as per Statement of Profit and Loss (b) Other expenses exciuding (i) Bad debts (including provision);
(i) Net loss on forelgn exchange; {iii) CSR expenses and {v) Transfer tg contingancy reserves

Working Capital:

i) Current Assets: as per balance sheet

i} Current Lizbilities as per balance sheet {excluding current maturities of long term debt)

Revenue frem Cperation including net movement in Regulatory Deferral Balances: (a} Revenue from Operations as per Statement of profit and Loss; (b) Net movement in Regulatory Deferral

Balances (incfuding deferred tax)

Revenue from Operation including net movement in Regulatory Deferral Balances: {3} Revenue from Operations as per Statement of profit and Loss; {b} Net movement in Regulatory Daferral

Balances (inciuding deferred tax)

Average Capital Employed: {(a) Issued share capital; (b) Other equity; {c) Total Debt; less {d) Deferred Tax Assets; (e) Intangible Assets
Interest Income: Interest an bank depesits and Interest on [oans given
Note 44

Segment Reporting
The Company [s engaged in the business of distribution of pawer in Western of Odisha. Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews the financial infermation of the Company as a whale for decision
making and accordingly the Company has a single reportabla segment.

There are cartain consumer befanging te a singie group of companies from whom the Company has earned more than 10% of revenue amounting to # 2011.83 crores during the year ended March 31,
2024 (March 31, 2023: 22,141.26 crores).

Note 45
Relationship with Struck off Companies

Balance Transaction Balance_ . .
Nature of transactions | Transaction during outstanding during the |outstandin| Relationship
Sl No.| Name of struck off Company with struck off the Year Ended as at March Year Ended gasat with the struck
company March 31, 2024 31, 2024 March 31, | March 31, off company
' 2023 2023

1|DELHI PUBLIC SCHOOL Sale of Power (0.03) 0.00) 0.02 0.03 |Customer
2|MAHALAXMI RICE MILL Sale of Power (0.00) c.oo 0,00 0.00 |Customer
3|BALAJ FOOD PRODUCTS Sale of Pawer {0.00) G.00 0.00 0.00 |Customer
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Note 46

Gther Statutory Information

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(1) The Cempany does net have any charges or satisfactipn which 1s yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iif) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current financial year and previsus financial year

(iv) The Company does not have any such transactions which has not been recorded in the books of accounts but has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Incoma Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the income Tax Act, 1961).

(v} The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or cther lender.

{vi) The Company has not advanced or loaned or investad funds to any other perssn(s) or entity(ies), including foraign entities {Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall (a)
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Company {ultimate beneficiaries), or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the
like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(vii) The Company has not received funds from any persen(s) or entity{ies), including fareign entities, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or
indirectly, (2) lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party, or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the tike on hehali of the ullimate
beneficiaries.

(viii) Quarterly returns or statements of current assets Rled by the Company with the banks in copnecticn with the working capita! limit sanctloned are in agreement with the books of accounts.

{ix} The titie deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Campany is the lessce and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Jessee) are held in the name of the
Company.

{x) The Company has not given any leans or advances in the nature of loans to prometers, directors, KMPs and/ o related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly
with any other perscn, that are repayable on demand, or witheut specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(i) The Cernpany is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017
{as amended).

{xii} The Group has five CICs which are registered with the Reserve Bank of India and two CICs which are not required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

Note 47
Saocial Security Code

The Code on Sogial Security, 2020 {'Code’) relaling te employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent n September 2020. The Code has been published
in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Cade will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet heen issued. The Company will assess the impact of
the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the peried the Code becomes effective. Based on a preliminary assessment, the entity believes Lhe impact of the change will not be
significant

Note 48
Significant events after the reporting period
There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting period other than the events disclosed in the relevant nates

Note 49

Audit Trail

The Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has cperated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the softwares, except that audil Lrajl feature is not enabled at the database level insofar as it relates o the SAP S/4 HANA and CIS apphcation and/or the underlying HANA
and DB2Z database respectively.

However stringent contral procedures were Implemented to effectively restrict direct changes to data throughout the financial year. These pracedures included thorpugh reviews of logs and reconciliation of
datasets and during the financial year no direct changes were made that impacted finencial records, Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was neted in respect of the accounting
softwares.

Note 50
Standards notified but not yet effective
There are no standards that are notified and not vet effective as on the date.

Mote 51
Appraval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on April 18, 2024,
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